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same dividend this year as well.

“One Nation One Tax” is the reality of the day ! GST implementation inter- alia, shows the maturity and 

political will to take series of unprecedented steps towards economic reforms by the current dispensation 

at the centre. These historic steps shall change the perception to do business all over. Although, in the 

short term, domestic economic growth showed some pressure but not to such extent as was anticipated. 

RERA will also give impetus to the Real estate sector growth especially to the actual consumer. 

Last year I discussed about the uncertain International economic scenario, we are still at the cross- 

roads. Period under review witnessed a fast changing political narratives across the globe, although 

we witnessed a less volatile currency market, future challenges still exist. The geo political environment 

remain strong, growth could indeed surprise on the upside.

Your Company has continued to be a purposeful contributor in our communities through its various CSR 

initiatives to uplift the deprived society through social programs. We are dedicated for providing quality 

old age care centres and have spent ` 

I would like to extend my gratitude to all the stake holders including consortium of Banks lead by Allahabad 

Bank for their continued support and faith in us. I would also like to thank entire TEAM and my fellow 

colleagues on the board for their valuable support and guidance.

In the end I may say that in view of the bold initiatives for economic reforms, we are witnessing a resurgent 

India. 

With best wishes

Yours truly,

Deepak Kothari

Place : Kanpur

Dated : 29th July, 2017
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NOTICE:

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Third Annual General Meeting of the Members of Kothari Products Limited will 

be held on Friday, the 22nd September, 2017 at Hotel Vijay Intercontinental, 10/510, Khalasi Line, Tilak Nagar, Near 

Rave-3, Kanpur at 11:30 A.M., to transact the following businesses:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including Audited Consolidated Financial statements) 
st March, 2017 and the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ 

thereon.

2. 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Sri Mitesh Kothari (DIN: 00089076), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 

offers himself for re-appointment.

4. 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions of The Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time, pursuant to the proposal of the 

from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 38th Annual General Meeting of the 

may be decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Auditors.”

Regd. Off : By Order of the Board
‘PAN PARAG HOUSE’ for KOTHARI PRODUCTS LTD. 
24/19, THE MALL 

KANPUR – 208 001 Sd/- 

   (RAJ KUMAR GUPTA)
DATE : 22nd July, 2017 

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO 

ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THAT THE PROXY NEED NOT BE 

A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY BUT ONE PERSON CAN REPRESENT AS PROXY FOR NOT MORE THAN 

50 MEMBERS AND FOR MEMBERS HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL 

SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 

10% OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT 

A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER 

PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

2. Proxies, in order to be effective must be completed, stamped and signed and must be deposited at the 

and attendance slip are enclosed in the Annual Report.

3. The Register of Members of the Company shall remain closed from Friday, 15th September, 2017 to Friday, 22nd 

September, 2017 (both days inclusive) in connection with the Annual General Meeting and for the purpose of 

Payment of Dividend, if declared, at the aforesaid meeting.
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4. The Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2017 as recommended by the Board, if approved by the members, 

will be paid to the physical members whose names appear in the Company’s Register of Members on Thursday, 

14th

Share Transfer Agent on or before 14th September, 2017. In respect of the Shares held in electronic form, the 

furnished by National Securities Depository Ltd. and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. for this purpose.

5. THE MEMBERS HOLDING PHYSICAL SHARES ARE, IN THEIR OWN INTEREST, ADVISED TO SEND 

IMMEDIATELY REQUESTS FOR CHANGE OF ADDRESS AND BANK PARTICULARS, IF ANY, TO OUR 

REGISTRAR I.E. ALANKIT ASSIGNMENTS LTD., (UNIT : KOTHARI PRODUCTS LTD.) “ALANKIT HEIGHTS”, 

IMMEDIATELY INTIMATE THE CHANGE OF ADDRESS AND BANK DETAILS TO THEIR CONCERNED 

DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS.

of Dividend Warrants or for obtaining duplicate Dividend Warrants in lieu of the lost warrants. Pursuant to the 

Provisions of erstwhile Investor Education and Protection Fund (uploading of information regarding unpaid and 

unclaimed amounts lying with Companies) Rules, 2012, the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and 

unclaimed amounts lying with the Company on the website of the Company (www.kothariproducts.in).

7. Transfer of Unclaimed/Unpaid amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF):

 Pursuant to Sections 124 and 125 of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and erstwhile 

sections 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, all Unclaimed/Unpaid dividend for a period of seven 

years from the date they became due for payment, were required to be transferred to the IEPF. Accordingly, 

established by the Central Government. 

 As per Section 124(6) of the Act read with IEPF Rules as amended, all shares in respect of which dividend has 

remained unpaid/unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more are also required to be transferred to an IEPF 

Demat Account.

 The Company has sent notices to all the members whose Dividends are lying unpaid/unclaimed for seven 

consecutive years or more. Concerned Members are requested to claim the same immediately. In case the 

dividends are not claimed, necessary steps will be initiated by the Company to transfer shares held by the 

members to IEPF without further notice. 

 The unpaid Dividend amount relating to the Financial Years 1996-97, 1997-98, 1998-2000 (Interim), 1998-2000 

 MEMBERS ARE AGAIN ADVISED TO NOTE THAT THE UNPAID DIVIDEND AMOUNT RELATING TO 

FUND, AS PER THE PROVISIONS OF SEC.124(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IN OCTOBER, 2017. 

THE DIVIDEND FOR THE AFORESAID YEAR SHALL BE PAID ONLY ON RECEIPT OF REQUEST AND 

SATISFACTORY COMPLIANCE OF THE REQUISITE PROCEDURE

8. Members desirous of getting any information at the meeting about the accounts and operations of the company 

at least seven days before the date of the meeting to enable the management to keep the information required 

readily available at the meeting.

9. Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 has extended nomination facility to individuals holding shares in 

Companies. Shareowners, in particular, those holding shares as sole holder are advised to avail of the above 

facility in their own interest, by furnishing to the Company the particulars of their nominations. The prescribed 
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application form may be obtained by the shareowners from the Company’s Secretarial Department at its 

10. Members are requested to bring their copies of Annual Report at the meeting. Please note that no gifts will be 

distributed at the meeting.

11. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing 

paperless compliances by the companies and has issued circulars stating that service of notices/documents 

including Annual Reports can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green initiative of the Government 

in full measure, members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far, are requested to register their 

e-mail addresses, in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository 

Participants. Members who hold shares in physical form are requested to register the same with our Registrar, 

Alankit Assignments Ltd., “Alankit Heights”, 1E/13 Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi – 110 055.

12. Even after registering for e-communication, the members are entitled to receive such communication/documents 

in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by post, free of cost.

13. In Compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of The 

Companies (Mangement and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, alongwith Regulation 44 of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the members have been provided with the facility to cast their votes electronically 

through the “remote e-voting” services provided by NSDL, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. The 

“remote e-voting” period commences on Tuesday, 19th September, 2017 (9:00 A.M. IST) to Thursday, 21st 

September, 2017 (5:00 P.M. IST). During this period, members of the Company holding shares either in physical 

form or in demateralised form, as on Friday 15th

for “remote e-voting”), may cast their votes electronically. The “remote e-voting” module shall be disabled by 

NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, he shall not be allowed to change 

it subsequently. A Physical Ballot form is also being sent to the members alongwith the Annual Report. Members 

have option to vote either through “remote e-voting” or through the Physical Ballot form. If a member has opted 

for “remote e-voting” then he/she should not vote by Physical Ballot and also vice versa. However, in case 

members cast their votes both via Physical Ballot and “remote e-voting” then voting through “remote e-voting” 

shall prevail and voting done by physical ballot shall be treated as invalid. The instructions for “remote e-voting” 

and other details thereof are mentioned in the physical ballot form and “remote e-voting” form being sent to you 

alongwith the Annual Report and they form an integral part of this notice. The members who have cast their vote 

by “remote e-voting” prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 

again.

by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only, shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as 

voting in the Annual General Meeting through Ballot Paper. 

15. Members who have acquired shares after the dispatch of the Annual Report and before the book closure 

may obtain the user ID and Password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or rta@alankit.com by 

mentioning their Folio No./DP ID and Client Id. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote 

e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you have forgotten your 

password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details / Password” option available on www.
evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no. 1800-222-990.

16. The Company has appointed Sri Adesh Tandon, a Practising Company Secretary of Kanpur as Scrutinizer 

to receive and scrutinize the completed physical ballot forms and votes cast electronically by the members. 

The results declared alongwith the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.
kothariproducts.in and on the website of NSDL www.evoting.nsdl.com within 3 days of passing the 

resolutions at the Thirty Third Annual General Meeting of the Company on Friday, 22nd September, 2017 and 

communicated to the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. and National Stock Exchange of India Limited, where the 

shares of the Company are listed.
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17. The Chairman shall, at the Annual General Meeting, at the end of discussions on the resolutions on which voting 

is to be held, allow voting, with the assistance of scrutinizer by use of Ballot Paper for all those members who 

are present at the Annual General Meeting but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

18. Pursuant to SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, particulars of Director seeking re-appointment at this meeting are 

provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual Report.

the Company/RTA while transacting in the securities market including by transfer, transmission or any other 

Corporate Action. Accordingly, all the Physical shareholders/transferees of shares (including Joint holders) are 

market including by transfer, transmission or any other Corporate Action.

the Company during normal business hours (10:00 A.M. TO 6:00 P.M.) on all working days upto and including 

the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

21. Annual Report and AGM Notice is available at the website of the Company at www.kothariproducts.in in the 

Investor Relation Section.
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Route Map No. 1 To the Venue of 33rd Annual General Meeting

Route Map No. 2 to the Venue of 33rd Annual General Meeting
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS:

The Board of Directors of your Company presents herewith its 33rd Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the 

in accordance with the guidelines of Corporate Governance.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE:

(Amount in ` Lacs)

FINANCIAL YEAR 
ENDED 31.03.2017

FINANCIAL YEAR 

ENDED 31.03.2016

Net Sales 419185 452545

Other Income 18844 13314

9709 8552

Less : Depreciation 159 169

Provision for Taxation:

-Current Tax 2660 2626

-Deferred Tax 492 123

-Tax Adjustments for earlier years -53 93

6451 5541

39466 35517

45917 41058

APPROPRIATIONS

Transfer to General Reserve 645 515

Interim Dividend Paid 0 895

Additional Tax on Interim Dividend Paid 0 182

Proposed Dividend 895 0

Additional Tax on Proposed Dividend 182 0

44195 39466

45917 41058

2017 IN RETROSPECT

Your Directors are to report that the Company’s sales turnover during the year under review has decreased to ` 

419185 Lacs from ` 

` 9709 Lacs as against ` 8552 Lacs in the 

` 6451 Lacs as 

against ` 5541 Lacs of the previous year resulting in an increase of 16.42%.

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS:

The Company’s export during the year under review has decreased to ` 315753 Lacs as compared to ` 393886 

Lacs during the previous year resulting in decrease of 19.83%. The lower exports have been due to very competitive 

International Market, however at the same time Company has increased its business in the domestic market.

DIVIDEND RECOMMENDED

Your Directors have recommended a dividend of 30% (` 3/- Per Equity Share of ` 10/- each) subject to the approval 

of shareowners in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review there were no changes in the Share Capital of the Company.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Company has, as on 31st March, 2017 Six subsidiaries namely MK Web-Tech Pvt. Ltd., KPL Exports Pvt. Ltd. as 

its Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies and Kothari Products Singapore Pvt. Ltd., Pinehills (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 

25th th March, 2017 respectively. Further, the Company also has, as on 31st March, 2017, eight 

Associate Companies as mentioned in the notes of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company. During the 

3 of section 129 of the Act have been disclosed in a separate statement attached to the consolidated Financial 

each of the subsidiaries, as required by Rule 8 (1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The Company hereby 

undertakes that the Annual Accounts of the subsidiary companies and their related detailed information shall be 

made available to the shareowners of the holding and subsidiary companies seeking such information at any point 

of time and shall also be placed on the website of the holding Company. The Annual Accounts of the subsidiary 

of the subsidiary companies concerned.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS:

the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards Rules, 2015) and 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 with effect from 1st April, 2016. Ind AS has 

replaced the existing Indian GAAP prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of 

Companies(Accounts)Rules, 2014.

Accordingly the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) with effect from 1st April, 2016 with the 

transition date of 1st st March, 2017 has been prepared 
st March, 2016 have been restated to 

comply with Ind AS to make them comparable.

balance sheet as at April 1, 2015.

The effect of the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has been explained by way of an reconciliation in the Standalone 

Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sri Mitesh Kothari, Executive Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 

being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment. There is no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during 

the year.

NUMBER OF THE BOARD MEETINGS

The Company held Five Board Meetings during the year 2016-17 the details of aforesaid meetings are given in the 

Corporate Governance Report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

particulars relating to the aforesaid are not applicable.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

(i) That in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2017, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed;
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(ii) that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the year under review on a going concern basis.

(vi) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 

that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has constituted following committees:-

1.  Audit Committee.

2.  Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

4.  Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

5.  Risk Management Committee 

The Composition, Scope and Powers of the aforementioned Committees together with details of their meetings held 

during the period under review, forms part of the Corporate Governance Report.

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

As required by the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 the annual report on CSR 

activities undertaken by the Company during the year under review is attached as ‘Annexure-1’ to this Directors 

Report.

POLICIES OF THE COMPANY

Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Company has framed following Policies:-

1.  Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.

3.  Risk Management Policy.

4.  Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism.

5. Policy on Material Subsidiaries.

6. Policy on Related Party Transactions.

7.  Policy determining materiality of events/information.

8.  Policy on code of Practices and Procedures for fair disclosure of Insider Trading.

The details of the aforesaid policies are mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report and copies of the aforesaid 

policies are placed on the website of the Company.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Sri Pramod Kumar Tandon, Sri Vikas Chaturvedi and Dr. Avinash Gupta are Independent Directors on the Board of 

the Company. All the above named Independent Directors have given their respective declarations under Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT

Auditor’s Report attached with the Financial statements of the Company forming part of this Annual Report.

report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 M/s 

before the commencement of the Companies Act, 2013, were eligible to be re-appointed as Auditors of the Company 

for a further period of three more years and were accordingly re-appointed by the members of the Company in its 

30th, 31st nd Annual General Meeting for a period of one year respectively. Accordingly the aforesaid Auditors 

re-appointment in the aforesaid Annual General Meeting.

the ensuing Annual General Meeting, in place of the aforesaid retiring Auditors. You will be informed of the name of 

Annual General Meeting of the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT & ITS REPORT

Secretary of Kanpur was appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and he has carried out the Secretarial 

Audit of the Company and has submitted his Report which is annexed to this report as ‘Annexure-2’.

The observation of the Secretarial Auditor regarding dematerialization of physical shareholding of only 4500 Shares 

(0.02% of the total capital of the Company) of one of the Promoters, after 31st March, 2017, was due to some 

technical reasons. The Board is of opinion that in view of the aforesaid shareholding being very meager hence the 

LOANS GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

statements provided in this Annual Report.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING & COMPLIANCE

of India Ltd., Mumbai and the Company is regularly complying with all the provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

A detailed Corporate Governance Report that also contains disclosures as per Section 134 and 177 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 is attached and forms part of this Annual Report.

this Annual Report.

BOARD EVALUATION 

Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an Annual performance evaluation of its own performance, its 

committees and the Directors individually.

The evaluation of non-independent Directors, Chairman and the Board as a whole was done at a separate meeting 

held by independent Directors. The performance evaluation of independent Directors was done by the entire board, 

excluding Directors being evaluated. 
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has in place, an Anti-sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment 
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention & Redressal) Act, 2013.

An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual 
harassment, if any. All employees (Permanent, Contractual, Temporary, Trainees) are covered under this policy. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

The information, as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is as 
under:-

a) INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

 The Global Economy including both developed and emerging countries is showing signs of growth with 

Going Forward, global growth is projected to edge up but at a slower pace.

 India is one of the fastest growing economy in the world and is expected to grow at a faster pace in the 
coming year on the backdrop of strong domestic consumption, policy reforms, and government spending on 
infrastructure.

 In view of the aforesaid global & domestic scenarios the International Trading Industry shown an almost stagnant 
performance and is expected to grow in the coming years due to the various pragmatic initiatives of the Indian 
Government and expected revival of the Global Economy.

b) OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

With the reform oriented and business friendly government at the center and India among the fastest developing 
economy of the world, the opportunities for the company appears to be endless. However the trading industry 
may face the risk of imposition of a ban on import/export of a commodity by the government of any country, 
decrease in consumer demand, price war among key competitors. 

c) SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

The Real Estate etc divisions has shown improved performance as compared to Trading division. In trading 

Trading division during the year under review has been ` 428953 Lacs as compared to ` 
the previous year and that of the Real Estate etc., has been ` ` 

` ` 
` 9510 Lacs & ` 

d)  OUTLOOK:

With the global economy appearing to be on the path of revival and with the high income economies showing 

in particular and Trading Industry in general appears to be bright. The stable and growth oriented Government 
at the Center and its initiatives like make-in-India, digitalisation, demonetisation for eliminating black money and 

development of infrastructure are positive for the real estate industry. In view of the aforesaid the outlook of the 
Company also appears to be bright.

e)  RISKS AND CONCERNS:

These aspects have been mentioned under the Heading “Opportunities and Threats”.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its business for the import & export of commodities, 

operational information and compliance of various statutory compliances.
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DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

These discussions have been enumerated under the headings “Financial Performance”, “2017 in Retrospect” & 

“Segment wise Performance” of this Report.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT

Human Resource is the most important element of the organization. Our Core Values are discipline, trust, integrity 

and work style. Core Values are established to align all the people in the organization in the direction of achieving 

and motivation. This has resulted in reduction of employee turnover. Your Company focuses on recruiting and 

retaining the best talent in the industry. Moreover, Company provides them proper induction, training and knowledge 

upgradation for the individual as well as organizational growth. The Company continues to maintain its record of 

cordial and harmonious industrial relations without any interruption in work. Further, as on 31st March, 2017 the 

Company had 64 employees on its roll.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

therein of elements of risk, if any, which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information required under Section 134(3)(M) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as under:-

[A] CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a) Energy Conservation Measures taken:

 The Company has taken all measures for conservation of energy most economically.

b) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate source of energy:- No such steps have been taken 

by the Company.

c) The capital Investments on energy conservation equipments: - No such investment has been made by the 

Company

d) Impact of measures at (a) above for energy conservation: - These measures have led to consumption of 

energy more economically.

[B] TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

 Since there is no manufacturing activity in the Company hence the information under this heading is not 

applicable to the Company.

[C] FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO :

(Amount in Lacs)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

a) Earning in Foreign Exchange 315753 393886

b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency 402628 447808

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS :

Cordial and harmonious industrial relations prevailed throughout the year.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES :

Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 as amended, is attached herewith as ‘Annexure-3’ to this Report. Further, the information required under 

section Sec.197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of The Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended, is attached herewith as ‘Annexure-4’ to this 

Report.
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EXTRACTS OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

As per Section 92(3) of The Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 12 of The Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return of the Company in Form No. MGT-9 is attached to this 

report as ‘Annexure-5’.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 

2013 have been enclosed with the report in the prescribed format AOC-2 as ‘Annexure-6’.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

concern status of the Company and its future operations.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2015, the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2017 is forming part of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURING 
AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE 

There have been no material changes and commitments which have occurred between the end of Financial Year 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued co-operation and support 

the contribution made by the employees.

The Board also wishes to place on record its gratitude to the valued customers, members and investors for their 

   For and on behalf of the Board

     Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE : KANPUR (DEEPAK KOTHARI) (MITESH KOTHARI) 

DATE : 23rd May, 2017 Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director
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ANNEXURE-1 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Annual Report on CSR Activities and CSR Policy

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be 
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.

 The Board of Directors of the Company, after taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, 

has approved a CSR Policy for the Company. As required under Section 135(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

this policy has been uploaded on the Company’s website.

 The Company is undertaking its CSR activities approved by its CSR Committee through “Maa Sharda Charitable 

Trust”. The aforesaid Trust has been established by the Company as the Settlor/Founder. The aforesaid Trust 

Companies Act, 2013.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

 The composition of the CSR Committee has been mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report.

Act, 2013
st March, 2016 is ` 71,29,31,512.

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above)

 The prescribed CSR expenditure for the year is ` 1,42,58,630 (2% of ` 71,29,31,512). However the Company 

has contributed ` 1,42,58,630 to “Maa Sharda Charitable Trust”.

 The Company has contributed an amount of ̀  
st March, 2016. The Company has contributed the amount for the CSR activity to be 

undertaken through “Maa Sharda Charitable Trust”, a registered trust established by the company.

(` In Crores)

SI.

NO.

CSR Projects 

or activity 

Sector in which the 

project is covered.

(clause No.iii of sched-

ule VII to the Com-

panies Act, 2013 as 

amended 

Projects or Programs

(1)Local area or other

(2)specify the State 

and district where 

projects or programs 

was undertaken

Amount 

outlay (bud-

get) Projects 

or Programs 

wise

 

Amount spent on the 

Projects or Programs

Sub-heads:
(1)Direct expenditure 

on Projects or Pro-

grams

(2)Over-heads:

Cumula-

tive expen-

diture upto 

the report-

ing period

Amount 

spent:

Direct or 

through 

implementing 

agency

1 Community 

Development, 

old age 

homes and 

Day Care 

Centres

Setting up of old age 

homes, Day Care 

facilities for senior 

citizens and measures 

of reducing inequalities 

faced by socially and 

economically back-

ward groups

Dehat

10.00 1.43 4.47 Through 

“Maa Sharda 

Charitable 

Trust”

in its Board Report. N.A.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, 
is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the company

the CSR objectives and policy of the Company. 

   For and on behalf of the Board

     Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE : KANPUR (DEEPAK KOTHARI) (MITESH KOTHARI) 
DATE : 23rd May, 2017 Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director
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ANNEXURE-2 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
Kothari Products Limited,
Pan Parag House, 24/19,
The Mall, Kanpur-208001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 

to good corporate practices by Kothari Products Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit 

was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
st, 2017, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

Kothari Products Limited st, 2017 according to the provisions of:

i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable 
to the Company during the year)

v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 

1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 

2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2009; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company during the year)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
applicable to the Company during the year)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the 
year)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable 
to the Company during the year)
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable 
to the Company during the year)

 We further report that, 
management and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test check 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following:

(i) The Secretarial Standards as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pursuant to the Listing 

Agreement as entered into by the company with the stock exchange(s).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observation-:

Out of total promoters’ shareholding, 4500 shares representing 0.02% were not demated during the year under the 

review. However, the same got demated before the date of signing of this report.

We further report that:-

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

All decision at the Board Meeting and Committee Meeting has been carried out without dissent, as recorded in the 

minutes of the meetings of the Board or Committee of the Board as the case may be.

We further report that:-

There exist systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to 

ensure and monitor all critical compliances with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were:

(i) No instances of Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/ debentures/sweat equity, etc. 

(ii) No instances of Redemption / buy-back of securities.

(iii) No major decisions were taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013

(iv) No instances of Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc. 

(v) No instances of foreign technical collaborations. 

Adesh Tandon & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-
Date: 23rd May, 2017 Adesh Tandon
Place: Kanpur (Proprietor) 

FCS No.:2253

C P No.:1121
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ANNEXURE -3 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES 
ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

remuneration of each Director to Median Remuneration of Employees of the Company for the Financial Year 

2016-17 and the Comparison of the Remuneration of the KMP against the performance of the Company are as 

under: 

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director/
KMP and Designation

Remuneration 
of Director/
KMP for 
Financial year 
2016-17 (`)

% Increase in 
Remuneration 
in the Financial 
Year 2016-17

Ratio of 
remuneration of 
each Director 
to Median 
Remuneration of 
Employees

Comparison of 
the Remunera-
tion of the KMP 
against the per-
formance of the 
Company

1. Sri Deepak Kothari, 

Director

42812307 58.37 115:1

increased by 

14.10% for the 

Financial Year 

2016-17

2. Sri Mitesh Kothari, 

Executive Director

46977109 50.76 127:1

3. Sri Raj Kumar Gupta, 869160 9.91 2:1

4. Sri Anurag Tandon, 

C.F.O.

3138400 31.28 8:1

` 3,71,197.

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:-

 There were 64 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2017.

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 

remuneration:-

 Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than the Managerial Personnel in the last 

   For and on behalf of the Board

     Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE : KANPUR (DEEPAK KOTHARI) (MITESH KOTHARI) 
DATE : 23rd May, 2017 Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director
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ANNEXURE “4” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 Read with Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of The 
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended till date.

Sl. 

No.

Name of 

Employee

Designation 

Duties

Gross 

Remuneration 

(`)

Nature of 

Employment

Date of Com-

mencement of 

Employment

Age / Experi-

ence

Last 

Employment

Shareholding in 

the Company

1. Sri Deepak 

Kothari Managing 

Director/

Management

42812307/- Contractual Graduate 07.09.1988 66/44 -------- 55.55%

2. Sri Mitesh 

Kothari

Executive 

Director / 

Management

46977109/- ------do----- MBA 01.04.2000 40/20 -------- 2.04%

NOTES :

2. Both the above employees are related to each other. Sri Deepak Kothari is father of Shri Mitesh Kothari and Sri 

Mitesh Kothari is son of Sri Deepak Kothari.

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended till date.

5. As per Section 136 of The Companies Act, 2013 the Annual Report and Accounts are being sent to the members 

excluding the statement containing the names and other details of top ten employees in terms of remuneration 

Remuneration of Manegerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. However the aforesaid statement is open for inspection 

the Company Secretary. 

   For and on behalf of the Board

     Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE : KANPUR (DEEPAK KOTHARI) (MITESH KOTHARI) 
DATE : 23rd May, 2017 Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director
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ANNEXURE - 5 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. MGT 9     
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN     

Rules, 2014.     

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN L16008UP1983PLC006254

ii Registration Date 17.09.1983

iii Name of the Company KOTHARI PRODUCTS LTD.

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

v  “PAN PARAG HOUSE”, 24/19, THE MALL 

KANPUR – 208 001 (U.P.) 

 

E-MAIL : rkgupta@kothariproducts.in, 

http://www.kothariproducts.in

vi Whether listed company YES

vii Alankit Assignments Ltd. 

(Unit: Kothari Products Ltd.)  

“Alankit Heights” 

1E/13 Jhandewalan Extension 

New Delhi – 110 055  

 

Fax Nos. (011) 41543474  

E-mail : rta@alankit.com, Website : www.alankit.com

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

SL 
No

Name & Description of main products/services NIC Code of the  
Product /service

% to total turnover  
of the company

1 Wholesale Trading of Coal 4661 18.94%

2 Wholesale Trading of Oil 4661 22.42%

3 Wholesale Trading of Construction Materials (Tiles etc.) 4663 25.43%

4 4651 24.43%

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl 
No

Name & Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
Shares 

Held

Applicable  
Section

1 MK Web-Tech Pvt. Ltd. 

C/62, Vibgyor Tower, 9th Floor, 

BandraKurla Complex, Bandra 

East, Mumbai- 400 051

U72200MH2005PTC152153 SUBSIDIARY 100% 2(87)

2  KPL Exports Pvt. Limited 

“Pan Parag House” 24/19, The 

Mall, Kanpur-208 001

U74900UP2008PTC035118 SUBSIDIARY 100% 2(87)
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Sl 
No

Name & Address of the 
Company

CIN/GLN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate

% of 
Shares 

Held

Applicable  
Section

3 Kothari Products Singapore 

Pte. Limited

101 Cecil Street # 11-01, 

Tong Eng Building, 

Singapore - 069 533

200809977K SUBSIDIARY 99.9998% 2(87)

4 Savitrimata Realtors Pvt. Ltd. 

7 Chittaranjan Avenue, PS 

Bowbazar, Kolkata, 700072

U45400WB2006PTC108572 SUBSIDIARY 51% 2(87)

5 Blackplinth Realtors Pvt. Ltd. 

C/62, Vibgyor Tower, 9th Floor, 

Bandra Kurla Complex, 

Bandra East, Mumbai- 400 051

U45400MH2011PTC219443 SUBSIDIARY 54% 2(87)

6 Pinehills (Singapore) Pte Ltd., 

Singapore, 

101 Cecil Street # 11-01,  

Tong Eng Building, 

Singapore - 069 533 

201132797G a wholly owned 

subsidiary of 

Kothari Products 

Singapore 

Pte Limited, a 

subsidiary of the 

Company 

99.9998% 2(87)

7 Hara Parvati Realtors Pvt. Ltd. 

7, Chittaranjan Avenue, PS 

Bowbazar, Kolkata, 700072

U70101WB2006PTC108570 ASSOCIATE 50.00% 2(6)

8 Real Griha Nirman Private Ltd. 

7, Chittaranjan Avenue, 

Kolkata - 700072

U45201WB2004PTC100346 ASSOCIATE 50% 2(6)

9 Shubhadra Realtors Private Ltd. 

7, Chittaranjan Avenue,  

Kolkata - 700072

U70109WB2006PTC111280 ASSOCIATE 50% 2(6)

10 Sankhya Realtors Private Ltd. 7, 

Chittaranjan Avenue,  

3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700072

U45200WB2006PTC111454 ASSOCIATE 45% 2(6)

11 SPPL Hotels Private Ltd. 

7, Chittaranjan Avenue,  

3rd Floor, Kolkata- 700072

U55101WB2005PTC106405 ASSOCIATE 50% 2(6)

12 Sattva Realtors Pvt Ltd 

Salarpuria Windsor, 4th Floor, 

No. 3, Ulsoor Main Road, 

Ulsoor, Bangalore - 560001

U70102KA2007PTC044240 ASSOCIATE 25% 2(6)

13 Neelanchal Con – Tech Pvt. Ltd. 

Salarpuria Windsor, 4th Floor, 

No.3, Ulsoor Main Road, Ulsoor, 

Bangalore - 560001

U45205KA2011PTC058638 ASSOCIATE 50% 2(6)

14

(Pvt.) Ltd. Plot No. A-23, D1 

Block, MIDC Chinchwad, Pune, 

Maharashtra - 411 019

U28991MH1966PTC013491 ASSOCIATE 49.33% 2(6)
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IV  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)   

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change 

during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 19077907 4500 19082407 63.94 19077907 4500 19082407 63.94 0

b) Central Govt.or State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corporates 3299998 0 3299998 11.06 3299998 0 3299998 11.06 0

d) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 22377905 4500 22382405 75 22377905 4500 22382405 75 0

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Any other… 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Shareholding of Promoter  
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

22377905 4500 22382405 75 22377905 4500 22382405 75 0

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Banks/FI 4004 0 4004 0.01 15902 0 15902 0.05 297

c) Central Govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

e) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

g) FIIS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Foreign Protfolio Investor 300 0 300 0.001 0 0 0 0 -100

SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 4304 0 4304 0.014 15902 0 15902 0.05 269
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change 

during the 

year
Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian 4420661 2250 4422911 14.82 4442815 2250 4445065 14.89 0.5

ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital upto ` 1 lakhs 

2165652 196891 2362543 7.92 2200262 182991 2383253 7.99 0.88

ii) Individuals shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital in excess of ` 1 

lakhs

446448 129150 575598 1.93 418957 129150 548107 1.84 -4.78

c) Others (specify)

TRUST 0 0 0 0 2308 0 2308 0.01 0.01

NBFC 0 0 0 0 200 0 200 0 0

NRI 96104 0 96104 0.32 66625 0 66625 0.22 -30.67

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 7128865 328291 7457156 24.98 7131167 314391 7445558 24.95 -0.16

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

7133169 328291 7461460 25 7147069 314391 7461460 25 0

C. Shares held by Custodian for  
GDRs & ADRs”

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grand Total (A+B+C) 29511074 332791 29843865 100 29524974 318891 29843865 100 0

(ii) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Sl 
No.

Shareholders 
Name

Shareholding at the  
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the  
end of the year

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

No of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
 of the 

company

% of shares 
pledged 

 encumbered 
to total shares

No of 
shares

% of total 
shares 
 of the 

company

% of shares 
pledged 

 encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Avinash Gupta 2250 0.008 0 2250 0.008 0 0

2 Deepak Kothari 

Jointly With Arti 

Kothari

16576596 55.544 0 16576596 55.544 0 0

3 Mitesh Kothari 609570 2.043 0 609570 2.043 0 0

4 Mitesh Kothari 

(HUF)

1828098 6.126 0 1828098 6.126 0 0

5 Reeta Dilip Shah 6750 0.023 0 6750 0.023 0 0

6 Sadhna V Kothari 4500 0.015 0 4500 0.015 0 0

7 Urvi Kothari 54643 0.183 0 54643 0.183 0 0

8 Dham Securities 

Pvt. Ltd.

3299998 11.058 0 3299998 11.058 0 0

TOTAL 22382405 75.000 0 22382405 75.000 0 0
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(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING (SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end 
of the year

Date wise Increase/
Decrease  

(Remarks if any)No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

1 Dr. Avinash Gupta 2250 0.008 2250 0.008 No Change

2 Sri Deepak Kothari 

Jointly with Smt. Arti 

Kothari

16576596 55.544 16576596 55.544 No Change

3 Sri Mitesh kothari 609570 2.043 609570 2.043 No Change

4 Mitesh Kothari (HUF) 1828098 6.126 1828098 6.126 No Change

5 Reeta Dilip Shah 6750 0.023 6750 0.023 No Change

6 Sadhna V Kothari 4500 0.015 4500 0.015 No Change

7 Urvi Kothari 54643 0.183 54643 0.183 No Change

8 Dham Securities Pvt. 

Ltd.

3299998 11.058 3299998 11.058 No Change

TOTAL 22382405 75 22382405 75 No Change

(iv)  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS,PROMOTRES AND 
HOLDERS OF GDRs & ADRs)

Sl. 
No.

Name of top Ten 
shareholders at the 
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

Date wise Increase/
Decrease (Remarks if any)

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 

Company

1 Magnus Properties Pvt. 

Ltd.

1690114 5.663 1690114 5.663 No Change

2 U.V.Buildcon Pvt. Ltd. 609118 2.041 609118 2.041 No Change

3 K.Raheja Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 462717 1.55 462717 1.55 No Change

4 Sattva Developers Pvt. Ltd. 450000 1.508 450000 1.508 No Change

5 Vaishali Traders Pvt. Ltd. 388650 1.302 388650 1.302 No Change

6 UFLEX Ltd. 342900 1.149 342900 1.149 No Change

7 Vivek Mehrotra 129150 0.433 129150 0.433 No Change

8 Adit Realty Pvt. Ltd. 84850 0.284 84850 0.284 No Change

9 Gopikishan Shivkishan 

Damani

67500 0.226 67500 0.226 No Change

10 Yogita Garg 64350 0.216 64350 0.216 No Change
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(v) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KMP     

Sl. 
No.

Name of Directors & KMP Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year 

No. of Shares % of total shares 
of the Company

No. of Shares % of total shares 
of the Company

1 Sri Deepak Kothari Jt. With 

Arti Kothari

16576596 55.54 16576596 55.54

2 Sri Mitesh Kothari 609570 2.04 609570 2.04

3 Dr.Avinash Gupta 2250 0.01 2250 0.01

4 Sri Pramod Kumar Tandon Nil Nil Nil Nil

5 Smt. Poonam Acharya Nil Nil Nil Nil

6 Sri Vikas Chaturvedi Nil Nil Nil Nil

7 Sri Raj Kumar Gupta Nil Nil Nil Nil

8 Sri Anurag Tandon Nil Nil Nil Nil
 

V INDEBTEDNESS

 (Amount in `)

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
 excluding 
deposits

Unsecured  
Loans

Deposits Total  
Indebtedness

Indebtness at the 
beginning of the 

 47,35,54,534.36  2,13,12,932.97  44,39,052.83  49,93,06,520.16 

i) Principal Amount - - - -

ii) Interest due but not 

paid

- - - -

iii) Interest accrued but 

not due

- - - -

Total (i+ii+iii)  47,35,54,534.36  2,13,12,932.97  44,39,052.83  49,93,06,520.16 

Change in 
Indebtedness during 

Additions  61,76,02,816.39 -  42,42,870.25  62,18,45,686.64 

Reduction -  97,14,670.29 -  97,14,670.29 

Net Change - - - -

Indebtedness at the 

year

 1,09,11,57,350.75  1,15,98,262.68  86,81,923.08  1,11,14,37,536.51 

i) Principal Amount - - - -

ii) Interest due but not 

paid

- - - -

iii) Interest accrued but 

not due

- - - -

Total (i+ii+iii)  1,09,11,57,350.75  1,15,98,262.68  86,81,923.08  1,11,14,37,536.51 
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VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:

(Amount in `)

Sl. 
No

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the  
MD/WTD/Manager

Total Amount  
(in `)

Deepak Kothari Mitesh Kothari

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 

17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961.

1700967 1350000 3050967

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income 

tax Act, 1961

2796509 7341125 10137634

(c)

the Income Tax Act, 1961

- - -

2 Stock option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission 38199446 38199446 76398892

5 Others, please specify

Gratuity 115385 86538 201923

Total (A) 42812307 46977109 89789416

Ceiling as per the Act ` 

Company calculated as per Sec.198 of the Companies 

Act, 2013)

B. Remuneration to other directors: (Amount in `)

Sl. 
No

Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total 
Amount

1 Independent Directors Pramod Kumar 
Tandon

Dr. Avinash 
Gupta

Vikas 
Chaturvedi

(a) Fee for attending Board Meetings 12,000 3000 12,000 27000

(b) Commission 0 0 0 0

(c) Others, please specify 0 0 0 0

Total (1) 12000 3000 12000 27000

2 Other Non Executive Directors Poonam Acharya

(a) Fee for attending 6000 6000

(b) Commission 0 0

(c) Others, please specify. 0 0

Total (2) 6000 6000

Total (B)=(1+2) 18000 3000 12000 33000

Ceiling as per the Act ` 

calculated as per sec. 198 of the Companies Act, 2013).

Total Managerial Remuneration 58236938

Overall Ceiling as per the Act. ` 

calculated as per sec. 198 of the Companies Act, 2013).
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

(Amount in `)

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

CS & 
Compliance 

CFO

Raj Kumar 
Gupta

Anurag 
Tandon

1 Gross Salary Total

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961.

861960 3138400 4000360

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 

1961

7200 - 7200

(c)

Income Tax Act, 1961

- - -

2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission - - -

- - -

others, specify - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total 869160 3138400 4007560

VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES    

 THERE WERE NO PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES FOR THE YEAR ENDING 

31ST MARCH, 2017.     

   For and on behalf of the Board

     Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE : KANPUR (DEEPAK KOTHARI) (MITESH KOTHARI) 
DATE : 23rd May, 2017 Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director
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ANNEXURE-6 TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms- 
length transactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: --------- NIL--------- 

 (a)  Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship 

 (b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 

 (c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions 

 (d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any 

 (f) Date(s) of approval by the Board

 (g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

section 188 

2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

Sl. No. Particulars Details

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

The details of the transactions 

with related parties are 

provided in the accompanying 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 

including the value, if any

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any

 

   For and on behalf of the Board

     Sd/- Sd/-

PLACE : KANPUR (DEEPAK KOTHARI) (MITESH KOTHARI) 
DATE : 23rd May, 2017 Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION

st

st 

Names of the Directors No. of Outside 
Directorships*

No. of Membership, 
Chairmanship 
in Other Board 
Committees #

Executive/ Non 
Executive/ 

Independent/ Promoter

Designation

3 2

6

2

ATTENDANCE OF EACH DIRECTOR AT THE BOARD MEETINGS AND LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Name No. of Board
Meetings Held

No. of Board Meetings 
Attended

Attendance 
At Last A.G.M.

4

4

2

NO. OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR & DATES



33

3 3 R D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 6  —  2 0 1 7

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE

Sri Deepak Kothari is father of Sri Mitesh Kothari and accordingly Sri Mitesh Kothari is son of Sri Deepak Kothari. 

Except the aforesaid no other Directors of the Company is related to any other Director of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of the Audit Committee of the Company as on 31st March, 2017 was as under:-

Sl. 
No.

Name Of Directors Designation Executive/Non-Exeutive/ 
Independent

No. of Meetings Held 
During the Year

Attendance of 
Each Director

1. Sri Pramod Kumar Tandon Chairman Independent & Non-Executive 4 4

2. Dr.Avinash Gupta Vice Chairman Independent & Non-Executive 4 1

3. Sri Deepak Kothari Member Executive & Non Independent 4 4

4. Sri Vikas Chaturvedi Member Independent & Non-Executive 4 4

The Constitution of the Committee meets with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Company Secretary Mr. Raj Kumar Gupta is the Secretary of the Committee. 

The role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the areas mentioned under Regulation 18 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors, which mainly includes:

appointment, re-appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors, approval of payment to Statutory 

auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory auditors, reviewing with the management, Quarterly 

loans and investments, reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence, performance & effectiveness of audit 

audit, if any, to review with the management the statement of uses/application of funds raised through an issue 

and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of the issue and making 

appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter, to look into the reasons for substantial 

defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders and creditors, to review the functioning of 

as mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

The Committee also meets the operating management personnel and reviews the operations, new initiatives and 

performance of the business units. Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are circulated to the Members of the 

Board, discussed and taken note of.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee pursuant to the provisions of Sec.178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Composition of the committee is as under:-

Sl.

No.

Name of Directors Desig-
nation

Executive/Non-Executive/
Independent

No. of Meetings 
Held During the 

Year

Attendance 
of Each 
Director

1. Sri Pramod Kumar Tandon Chairman Independent and Non Executive 1 1

2. Dr. Avinash Gupta Member Independent and Non Executive 1 NIL

3. Sri Vikas Chaturvedi Member Independent and Non Executive 1 1
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The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

The role and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee broadly include:-

recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and other employees.

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of every Director.

3. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors.

accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal.

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director, on the basis of the report of 

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA:

Regulations, 2015, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has carried out a performance review of the 

Individual Directors and Board as a whole on the following parameters:

 The size and composition (executive, non-executive, independent members and their background in terms of 

knowledge, skills and experience) of the Board is appropriate.

 The Board conducts itself in such a manner that it is seen to be sensitive to the interests of all stakeholders 

(including minority shareholders) and it has adequate mechanism to communicate with them.

 The Board is active in addressing matters of strategic concerns in its review of the Board agenda with the 

executive management.

 The Board makes well-informed high quality decisions on the basis of full information and clear insight into 

Company’s business.

 The Board is effective in establishing a corporate environment that promotes timely and effective disclosure, 

 

 The Board meeting time is appropriately allocated between management presentation and Board discussion.

 The Board has a good understanding of the Company’s key drivers of performance and associated risks, threats 

and opportunities.

 The Board devotes considerable amount of time in developing the business strategy and annual business plan.

 

 

 The Board is effective in developing a corporate governance structure that allows and encourages the Board to 

 

and effectively oversees them.

 The Board regularly follows up on its decisions to ensure that action is taken on all its decisions.

 The Board gives effective advice and assistance for achieving the Company’s mission and vision.

Remuneration Policy of the Company, interalia, includes to ensure that:-

a. 

of the quality required to run the company successfully.
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b. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and

c. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance between 

Company and its goals. The details of Directors’ Remuneration paid during the year to all the Directors is as 

under :-

(Amount in `)

Name of Director Sri Deepak 

Kothari

Sri Mitesh 

Kothari

Dr. Avinash 

Gupta

Sri Pramod 

Kumar Tandon

Sri Vikas 

Chaturvedi

Smt. Poonam 

Acharya

Salary 1700967 1350000 - - - -

Gratuity 115385 86538 - - - -

Perquisites 2796509 7341125 - - - -

Commission 38199446 38199446 - - -

Sitting Fees - - 3000 12,000 12,000 6000

STAKE HOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Company has constituted stakeholders relationship committee pursuant to the provisions of sec.178 of the 

2015 to take care of matters relating to redressal of shareowners’/investors’ complaints, to recommend measures 

to improve the level of investors’ services and simultaneously to expedite the process of Share Transfers. The 

on split, consolidation, renewal, requests for transmission of shares etc., requests for non-receipt of annual report 

and non-receipt of declared dividends etc., Accordingly the Constitution of the Committee as on 31st March, 2017 is 

members. 

The Company addresses all complaints, suggestions and grievances expeditiously and replies have been sent/

issues resolved usually within 15 days except in case of dispute over facts or other legal constraints.

Name of the Non-executive Director heading the 

Committee

Sri Pramod Kumar Tandon

Sri Raj Kumar Gupta, 

No. of Shareowners Letters/complaints received 11

No. of Letters/Complaints not replied/solved to the 

Satisfaction of the shareowners 

All the Letters/Complaints received by the Company have 

been replied/solved to the satisfaction of the complainants.

No. of pending Complaints None of the Complaints is pending as at 31st March, 2017.

SHAREHOLDING OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Only Dr. Avinash Gupta holds 2250 shares in the Company. No other Non-Executive Director holds any shares in 

the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the provisions of sec.135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted Corporate 

Social Responsibility Committee on 3rd April, 2014. This committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of 

formulating/reviewing from time to time the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy broadly indicating the activities 

to be undertaken by the Company that are mandatory in the implementation of the framework of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy and recommend the money to be spent on each of the activities as prescribed under the Act 

and the rules made thereunder. The Composition of this Committee as on 31st March, 2017 is as under:-
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Names of Directors Designation in the Committee Category

Sri Pramod Kumar Tandon Chairman

Sri Deepak Kothari Member

Dr. Avinash Gupta Member

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted on 18th September, 2014, Risk Management Committee pursuant to the erstwhile 

revised clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and pursuant to the Risk Management Policy of the Company to perform 

which are inherent in the business of the Company. The Composition of the committee as on 31st March, 2017 is as 

under:-

Names of Directors Designation in the Committee Category

Sri Pramod Kumar Tandon Chairman

Sri Vikas Chaturvedi Member

Dr. Avinash Gupta Member

Sri Deepak Kothari Member

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM 

Pursuant to Section 177 of The Companies Act, 2013, the Board has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to promote 

reporting of any unethical or improper practice or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or complaints 

regarding accounting, auditing, internal controls or disclosure practices of the Company. It gives a platform to the 

th Floor, Bandra Kurla 

Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai, E-mail Id:- anuragtandonca@gmail.com. The company has assigned the email 

ID- anuragtandonca@gmail.com or deepakkothari@panparag.com or citizenforum.tandon6@gmail.com on which 

subjected to any discriminatory practice.

CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations 2015, the Company has adopted a Code for 

prevention of Insider Trading. The objective of the Code is to restrict an insider from dealing in the shares of the 

Company either directly or indirectly when in possession of unpublished price sensitive information (UPSI) and also 

to restrict communication of such UPSI. The Code is applicable to the Directors and Designated Employees/Persons 

associated with the Company. The Code enumerates the procedure to be followed for dealing in the shares of the 

Company and periodic disclosures to be made. It also restricts the insiders from dealing in the Company’s shares 

during the period when the “Trading Window” is announced closed. The Company Secretary has been designated 

Code of Practices and Procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive information. The aforesaid code 

has been posted by the Company on its website under the link “Investors Section”.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company has Four non-listed Indian Subsidiaries and Two non-listed Foreign Subsidiaries. In terms of Regulation 

subsidiary”, whose income or networth exceeds 20% of the Consolidated income or networth respectively, of the 

Listed Holding Company and its Subsidiaries, in the immediately preceding Accounting Year.



37

3 3 R D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 6  —  2 0 1 7

subsidiary companies. The summaries of minutes of the Board Meetings of the Subsidiary Companies are circulated 

to the Board of the Company alongwith agenda papers and the minutes are tabled at the Board Meeting.

The Company has prepared a Policy for determining a Material Subsidiary Company. The aforesaid policy can be 

viewed on the website of the Company under the link “Investors Section”.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Venue, Date & Time Where Last 3 AGMs Were Held

Meeting Date Time Venue

32nd AGM 23rd September, 2016 11:30 A.M. HOTEL VIJAY INTERCONTINENTAL, 10/510, KHALASI 

LINE, TILAK NAGAR, NEAR RAVE-3, KANPUR

31st AGM 24th September, 2015 11:30 A.M. HOTEL VIJAY INTERCONTINENTAL, 10/510, KHALASI 

LINE, TILAK NAGAR, NEAR RAVE-3, KANPUR

30th AGM 19th September, 2014 11:30 A.M. HOTEL VIJAY INTERCONTINENTAL, 10/510, KHALASI 

LINE, TILAK NAGAR, NEAR RAVE-3, KANPUR

DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTION(S) PASSED IN THE PREVIOUS 3 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS:-

Annual General Meeting No. of Special Resolutions

32nd 4

31st NIL

30th 1

At the 32nd Annual General Meeting held on September 23rd, 2016, Four Special Resolutions were passed relating 

Promoter’s Group to the Public Group. The resolutions were put to vote and passed with requisite majority.

At the 31st Annual General Meeting held on September 24th, 2015, No Special Resolution was passed.

At the 30th Annual General Meeting held on September 19th, 2014, One Special Resolution was passed relating 

to the amendment of Articles of Association of the Company. The resolution was put to vote and was passed with 

requisite majority. 

DETAILS OF RESOLUTIONS PASSED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT

During the year under review no resolutions was passed through Postal Ballot.

None of the items transacted at the last Annual General Meeting held on 23rd September, 2016 were required to be 

passed by Postal Ballot nor any resolution requiring a Postal Ballot is being proposed at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting.

EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

During the year under review no Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held.

DISCLOSURES

subsidiaries, the said policies are available on the website of the Company i.e. http://www.kothariproducts.in

There has neither been any non-compliances nor penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by the Stock 

Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority, on any matter relating to the capital markets, during the last 

three years.
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The Company has framed Whistle Blower Policy and the details of the same are available on the Company’s 

website, and no person has been denied access to the Audit Committee.

No accounting treatment has been done which is different from the prescribed Accounting Standards.

To promote ethical conduct and maintain high standards in carrying out business transactions of the Company, 

a Code of Conduct has been laid down for procedures to be followed by the Board Members and the Senior 

Management Employees. This Code is also posted on the Company’s website.

The Company has framed familiarization programmes and the same are imparted to Independent Directors. The 

aforesaid programmes are placed on website of the Company i.e. http://www.kothariproducts.in

The Company has inherent risks in its business activities and to manage these risks the Company has formulated 

a Risk Management Policy which is posted on the Company’s website.

to (i) of Sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the SEBI(LODR)Regulations, 2015.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

i.

normally Published in following newspapers.

Financial Express (All Editions) and Hindustan, Kanpur 

Edition

ii. Any website, where displayed

Company’s website i.e. http://www.kothariproducts.in

iii.

and presentations made to Institutional 

investors/analysts.

Details regarding Board of Director(s), businesses etc. of the 

Company and its subsidiaries and any changes therein are 

displayed. 

iv Whether Management Discussion and Analysis 

Report is a part of Annual Report

Yes

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

(CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and report thereon is submitted 

to the stock exchanges.

DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS AND ADOPTION OF NON-MANDATORY 
REQUIREMENTS

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as on 31st March, 2017.

2. Adoption of non-mandatory requirements as at 31st March, 2017:-

a) Board of Directors

and assistance made available to enable him discharge his responsibilities effectively. 

b) Shareholders Rights

 As the Quarterly and Half Yearly Financial Results are published in the newspapers as well as displayed 

on the Company’s Website, hence the results are not sent to household of each of the shareholders. The 

complete Annual report is sent to each and every shareholder of the Company.

st March, 2017.

d) Reporting of Internal Auditor

 The Internal Auditor of the Company reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Company.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT IN THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Name of Director Mitesh Kothari

Date of Birth 26.08.1976

Date of Appointment 23/09/2016

MBA

He has got a rich business experience in almost all the 
functional areas of the Company.

Directorships

Held in other Companies*

1. Blackplinth Realtors Pvt. Ltd.

2. KPL Exports Pvt. Ltd.

3. Pan Parag India Ltd.

4. Savitrimata Realtors Pvt. Ltd.

5. 

6. Sattva Realtors Ltd.

Committee Positions

held in other Company #

NIL

*The no. of other Directorships held by Directors as mentioned above, do not include Directorships held in Private 

Limited Companies which are neither subsidiaries nor holding Companies of a Public Company.

Chairmanships of only the Audit Committees and Shareholders’/Investors’ Grievance Committees in all public limited 

companies (excluding Kothari Products Limited) have been considered.

GENERAL SHAREOWNER INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

 DATE : 22nd September, 2017.

 TIME : 11:30 A.M.

 VENUE : HOTEL VIJAY INTERCONTINENTAL, 10/510, KHALASI LINE, TILAK NAGAR, NEAR RAVE-3, 

KANPUR 

FINANCIAL CALENDER

 (1st April, 2017 to 31st March, 2018)

On or before 14th August, 2017

On or before 14th November, 2017

Results for the third quarter ending 31.12.2017 On or before 14th February, 2018

On or before 30th May, 2018

 Dates of Book Closure : 15th September, 2017 to 22nd September, 2017 (both days inclusive)

 Dividend Payment Date: within 30 days of the Annual General Meeting.
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 Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code:

The shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai situated at Phiroze Jeejeebhoy 

Towers 25th Floor, Dalal Street MUMBAI - 400 001 & National Stock Exchange of India Ltd., Situated at Exchange 

Plaza 5th Floor Plot No.C/1 G Block Bandra Kurla Complex Bandra (E) MUMBAI - 400 051 Mumbai. Stock 

Code: 530299 on Bombay Stock Exchange, Kothari Pro-Series-EQ. : National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 

The Company had paid Annual Listing Fees for the Financial year 2016-17 to both the aforesaid Stock Exchanges 

MARKET PRICE DATA: HIGH & LOW DURING THE LAST FINANCIAL YEAR (NSE)

MONTH HIGH (Amount in `) LOW (Amount in `)

APRIL 2016 179.8 160.6

MAY 2016 181 160

JUNE 2016 176.4 134.6

JULY 2016 173.9 158

AUGUST 2016 164.5 155

SEPTEMBER 2016 174.85 157.7

OCTOBER 2016 235.7 162

NOVEMBER 2016 208.2 155

DECEMBER 2016 179.85 158.1

JANUARY 2017 174 163.55

FEBRUARY 2017 214.5 170.1

MARCH 2017 209.9 182.4

PERFORMANCE IN COMPARISON TO BSE SENSEX

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT 

The Company has appointed following Registrar & Transfer Agent for physical & demat work both, from 1st May, 

2007. All shareowners may contact the Registrar and Transfer Agent at the following address:-

Alankit Assignments Ltd.

(Unit: Kothari Products Ltd.)

 “Alankit Heights”

1E/13 Jhandewalan Extension

New Delhi – 110 055

Telephone Nos. (011) 23541234 & 42541234

Fax Nos. (011) 41543474

E-mail : rta@alankit.com 

Website : www.alankit.com

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM:

A Committee of Directors – Stakeholders Relationship Committee is constituted to approve, inter-alia the transfer 

The Company has appointed Alankit Assignments Ltd., as its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. All share transfers 

and related operations are conducted by Alankit Assignments Ltd., which is registered with the SEBI.

The Company’s Registrar Alankit Assignments Ltd., has adequate infrastructure to serve the shareholders and 

process the share transfers. In compliance with the Listing Agreement/Listing Regulations, every Six months the 

Investor correspondence should be addressed to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or the Company, as per 

contact details as given at the end of the Report.
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 The Shareholding distribution of equity shares as on 31st March, 2017 is given below:

No. of Equity 
shares held

No. of Shareowners No. of Shares held in % of Equity Capital 
held in

Total 
Shareholding

No. of 
Shareowners

% of 
Shareowners

Physical 
form

Demat 
Form

Physical 
Form

Demat 
form

Physical & 
Demat

1 – 500 7644 88.186 119241 945300 0.39 3.16 1064541

501 - 1000 522 6.022 14500 382958 0.05 1.28 397458

1001 - 5000 424 4.892 34400 886883 0.11 2.96 921283

5001 - 10000 39 0.450 21600 240483 0.07 0.80 262083

10001 - 20000 17 0.196 0 235638 0 0.78 235638

20001 - 30000 3 0.035 0 74832 0 0.25 74832

30001 - 40000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

40001 - 50000 1 0.012 0 45450 0 0.15 45450

50001 - 100000 7 0.081 0 455669 0 1.53 455669

100001 - 500000 5 0.058 129150 1644267 0.43 5.57 1773417

500001 - Above 6 0.069 0 24613494 0 82.47 24613494

 Total 8668 100 318891 29524974 1.05 98.95 29843865

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY

Nearly 98.95% of total Equity Share Capital is held in dematerialised form with NSDL and CDSL as on 31st 

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF THE COMPANY AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2017: 

Category No. of Shares Held % of Holding

22382405 75

Indian Public – Individuals 2931360 9.83

Indian Public - Corporate Bodies 4445065 14.89

Indian Public – Financial Institutions/ Banks 15902 0.05

NBFC Registered With RBI 200 0.00

Foreign Holding:-

(i) NRI(s) 66625 0.22

(ii) Trust 2308 0.01

Total 29843865 100.00
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 PLANT LOCATIONS

 Since the Company is engaged in the business of International Trade and Real Estate Activities and has no 

manufacturing activity hence it has no plants. 

1. 

correspondence to :

 The Share Department

KOTHARI PRODUCTS LTD.

“PAN PARAG HOUSE”

24/19, The Mall

KANPUR - 208 001

(U.P.)

PHONE NOS.- 0512-2312171-74

FAX NO. -0512-2312058

Email - rkgupta@kothariproducts.in

2. Physical Shareowners should send their requests for Share Transfers, Change of Address/Bank Details etc., if 

Alankit Assignments Ltd.

(Unit: Kothari Products Ltd.)

 “Alankit Heights”

1E/13 Jhandewalan Extension

New Delhi – 110 055

Fax Nos. (011) 41543474

E-mail : rta@alankit.com 

Website : www.alankit.com

3. Shareowners holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence relating to change of 

address, change of Bank details etc. to their respective Depository Participants.
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of Kothari Products Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Kothari Products Limited (“the 

Company”), for the year ended on 31st March, 2017 as per the relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange 

referred to in Regulation 15(2) of the Listing Regulations.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 

has been limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring 

the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations 

made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in the aforesaid SEBI Regulations.

As required by the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India we state that no investor 

grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records maintained by 

the Shareowners’/Investors’ Grievance Committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 

 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

 Sd/-

PLACE : KANPUR (VIVEK KUMAR)

DATE : 23rd May, 2017 PARTNER

DECLARATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

st March, 2017, compliance with the code of 

conduct of the Company laid down for them.

 Sd/-

PLACE : KANPUR (Deepak Kothari)

DATE : 23rd May, 2017
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CERTIFICATE BY C.E.O. AND C.F.O. 

Ltd., certify:-

st March, 

2017 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief;

 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement nor omit any material fact nor contain 

statements that might be misleading and

 these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with 

the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. That there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the 

year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct;

internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps that we have taken or propose to take to rectify the 

4. That we have informed the auditors and the audit committee of :

   Sd/- Sd/- 

Place : Kanpur (Deepak Kothari) (Anurag Tandon)
Date : 23rd May, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To,

The Members,

Kothari Products Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Auditors’ Responsibility

Opinion

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements



rd May, 2017 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

rd May, 2017 
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even 

date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 

(iii) (a) The Company has given unsecured loans to its subsidiary companies and associate companies covered in the register 

companies and three associate companies were ` 

loans to its one subsidiary and one associate company) and other terms & conditions of the loan given by Company, 

` 
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(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment 

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and has 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid managerial remuneration 

in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 188 

and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related 

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not entered 

into any non-cash transactions with its directors, directors of its subsidiary companies or persons connected with them and 

For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA,

Chartered Accountants,

PARTNER

Date : 23rd May, 2017 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2017
(Amount in ` Lacs)

NOTE As at 31.03.2017

I. ASSETS

(1) Non-current Assets

3 1012 954

Investment Property 4 2175

Investments 5 32178 31385 15428

Loans 7547 13210

7 159 775

(2) Current Assets

Inventories 8 4548

Investments 9 121234 104080 139493

10 149227 177471

11 4048 4907 3278

12 162 535

Loans 13 4516 13793 14743

14 2747 1988 2821

15 779 808 1299

TOTAL ASSETS 330332 351524 378514

II. EQUITY & LIABILITIES

(1) Equity

2984 2984 1990

(2) Other Equity

17 79437

(3) Non-current liabilities 

Long Term Borrowings 18 51 0 0

19 87 44 42

(4) Current Liabilities 

Borrowings 20 10977 4949 12305

Trade Payables 21 192951 239228

Provisions 22 1078 0 1552

23 42767 30255

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 330332 351524 378514

1 

A

rd May, 2017 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017 
(Amount in ` Lacs)

NOTE
Year Ended 

31st March 2017
 

I. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS :

24 434804

25 3225 1371

Total Income 438029

II. EXPENSES :

411664

27 3077

28 238 203

159

29 10941 7151

30 2400 2701

Total Expenses 428479

III. PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS & TAX 9550 8383

0 0

9550 8383

IV. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

2660

492 123

-53 93

V. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 6451 5541

Vi. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (Net of Tax) 0 0

VII. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 6451 5541

VIII. EARNINGS PER SHARE

`) 21.62

`) 21.62

1 

A

rd May, 2017 



52

Notes to Financial Statements

Note:1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: 

1.2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:   

A. SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING :    

B. USE OF ESTIMATES :    

1.3. Property plant and equipment (PPE)   

1.4. LEASE ACCOUNTING :    

1.5. INVENTORIES :   

1.6. INVESTMENTS :    

1.7. TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :    

a)  Initial recognition :    



53

3 3 R D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 6  —  2 0 1 7

b)  Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance Sheet date :    

 Foreign currency monetary items of the Company are reinstated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary items 

are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising out of these 

c)  Forward Exchange Contracts :    

 In respect of the transactions covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rates and 

contract is recognised over the life of the contract.   

1.8. REVENUE RECOGNITION:   

 Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognised on the time 

proportion basis.   

1.9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS :   

1.10. PROVISIONS FOR TAXATION:   

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date.    

 Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in 

future ; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets 

are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each 

Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation.    

1.11. PROVISIONS & CONTINGENCIES:   

resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.    

1.12. EARNING PER SHARE:   

1.13. PROPOSED DIVIDEND:   

Meeting except in case of interim dividend.    

1.14. BORROWING COSTS:   

Other borrowing costs are expensed out.   

1.15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS, SUBSIDIES AND EXPORT INCENTIVES:   

realisation.   
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Note : 2

The reconcilation of Equity from the previous Indian GAAP to IND-AS as on:-

Sr. 
No.

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars 31-Mar-16

a  Equity under previous Indian GAAP  78,222  74,154 

b  1,077  801 

c  605  282 

d

 (9)

 27  20 

e  608 

 (3,482)

Other Equity under Ind AS  77,048  72,584 

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31-Mar-16

a  5,145  4,932 

b  276  801 

c  323  282 

d

 (3)

 7  20 

e  - 

 (207)

 5,541 
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Note : 4

Investment Property (Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 
 AS AT  AS AT 

Gross Amount

 980  980  980 

 761 

 520 

 2,261  1,741  1,741 

Accumulated Depreciation

 62  47  33 

 24  15  14 

 86  47 

Net Carrying Amount  2,175 

Note : 5

PARTICULARS

QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

Investments (Non Current)

A. Quoted - Non Trade (At Market Value)

I. Equity Shares, Each, Fully Paid-up 

` 12000 12000 12000 65 77

` 0 20000 20000 0 1 2

` 0 38005 38005 0 231 277

23944 23944 23944 95 92 110

` 0 0 42 25

` 6000 0 0 70 0 0

` 1000 0 0 34 0 0

` 0 10000 10000 0 4 9

` 10000 10000 0 1 0 0

` 29894 29894 29894 283 252

` 38005 0 0 222 0 0

` 

1000 0 0 52 0 0

` 94500 94500 94500 52 38 158

` 94500 94500 0 56 0

0 22500 22500 0 14 21

0 7500 7500 0 3 4

14000 14000 14000 50 41 38

0 55000 55000 0 3 3

` 2000 2000 2000 32 24 34
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PARTICULARS

QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

` 0 5000 5000 0 3 2

110000 110000 324 233

` 1210 1210 1210 9 10 19

3000 3000 2000 11 8 10

` 0 20000 20000 0 0 0

20000 0 0 27 0 0

` 0 3000 3000 0 4 4

40000 0 0 74 0 0

` 20000 0 0 40 0 0

30000 30000 30000 78 51

` 25500 25500 25500 336 211

` 0 0 95000 0 0 178

600000 0 121 227 0

150 150 150 0 0 0

` 50000 0 0 31 0 0

` 215000 215000 215000 64 42

` 0 45000 45000 0 197 245

` 75000 0 0 84 0 0

` 5000 8500 0 24 27 0

12500 12500 12500 18 12

` 492056 1367 857 578

0 10000 10000 0 1 2

` 50000 612

` 0 90000 90000 0 4 4

TOTAL (A) 4232 3500

B. Unquoted

I. Non-trade (At Cost)

223 240 320

II. Trade (At Cost)

(a) Investments in Equity Shares of 
wholly owned subsidiary Companies, 
each Fully paid up

` 250000 250000 250000 190 190 190

` 6000000 2000000 10500 10500 100

NOTE : 5 CONTINUED
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PARTICULARS

QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

(b) Investments in Equity Shares of other 
subsidiary Companies, each Fully 
paid up

` 27000 27000 27000 3 3 3

` 

25500 25500 25500 107 107 107

10000000 10000000 10000000 3746

(c) Investments in Equity Shares of other 
Companies, each Fully paid up

` 25000 25000 12750 1624 1

` 10000 10000 10000 1 1 1

` 10000 10000 10000 1 1 1

` 10000 10000 10000 1 1 1

` 250000 250000 127500 478 478 13

` 12500 12500 12500 1 1 1

` 

10000 10000 10000 1 1 1

` 

0 100000 100000 0 10 10

` 90000 90000 90000 9 9 9

(d) Investment in Preference Shares of 
other companies, each fully paid-up 
of ` 10/- each

1621271 2770 2770 2770

1557692 0 1480 1480 0

849233 849233 849233 591 591 591

815929 815929 0 1477 1477 0

(d) Others

0 0 0

NOTE : 5 CONTINUED



59

3 3 R D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 6  —  2 0 1 7

PARTICULARS

QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

III. Trade (At Amortized Cost)

(a) Investments in Debentures of other 
subsidiary Companies

1% Redeemable Non Convertible 

Debentures of Savitrimata Realtors 

Private Limited (At Amortized Cost)

255000 255000 241800 3010 2812 2502

(b) Others

1% Unsecured Non Convertible 

Debentures of Real Griha Nirman 

Private Limited

30000 30000 30000 415 383 353

1% Optionally Convertible Debentures of 

Neelanchal Con-tech Private Limited 

10000 12000 12000 1318 1460 1345

TOTAL (B) 27946 27885 12065

TOTAL (A+B) 32178 31385 15428

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 
 AS AT 

31.03.2016 

 AS AT 

01.04.2015 

Note : 6

Loans (Non Current) 

Unsecured, Considered Good

(a) Security Deposits 19 11 8

(b) Loans & Advances to related parties 

  (i)  Loans to Associate Companies/Enterprises over which KMP are 
5336 4988 8411

  (ii)  Loans to Subsidiaries:-  

Savitrimata Realtors Pvt. Ltd. 59 53 174

M.K. Web Tech Pvt. Ltd. 203 0 209

Blackplinth Realtors Pvt. Ltd. 0 141 2298

(c) Other Loans & Advances

Advance for Properties 67 67 67

Loans to Others 1863 2420 2043

(A) 7547 7680 13210

Unsecured, Considered Doubtful

Loans to Others 100 100 100

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 100 100 100

(B) 0 0 0

TOTAL (A+B) 7547 7680 13210



(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 
 AS AT  AS AT 

Note : 7

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets

159 775

TOTAL 159 775

40 42

-1065

Provisions 1184 1184 1184

TOTAL 159 775

Note : 8

Inventories - 

Trading Items 1462

2443 3932 5143

643 1387 0

TOTAL 4548

Note : 9

PARTICULARS

QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

Investments (Current)

A. Mutual Funds-At Market Value

I. Units, each, fully paid up 

` 

21952856.455 2815 0 0

` 

0.000 0 0 15

` 

999990.000 108 101 102

` 

1200000.000 125 0 0

` 

9749361.448 2473 0 0

` 

79.086 1 0 0

` 

10376106.457 1862 0 0
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PARTICULARS

QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

L&T Resurgent India Corporate Bond Fund 

Growth of ` 10/-**

4131238.761 0.000 0.000 506 0 0

Reliance Money Manager Fund-Growth 

Plan Growth Option of ` 1000/-
23486.676 52060.260 0.000 527 1080 0

Reliance Liquid Fund-Treasury Plan-Growth 

of ` 1000/-
1417.027 0.000 0.000 56 0 0

Reliance Corporate Bond Fund-Growth 

Plan of ` 10/-**
6141610.177 0.000 0.000 809 0 0

Relience Regular Saving Fund-Debt Plan- 

Growth Plan Growth Option of ` 10/-**
4474.333 0.000 0.000 1 0 0

SBI Magnum Income Fund-Regular Plan-

Growth of ` 10/-**
10623145.935 5617959.124 5617959.124 4288 2012 1901

SBI Corporate Bond Fund- Regular Plan-

Growth of ` 10/-**
3869.475 0.000 0.000 1 0 0

UTI-Liquid Cash Plan-Institutional-Growth 

of ` 1000/-
15740.065 0.000 0.000 418 0 0

Aggregate Market Value TOTAL (A) 13990 3193 2018

(B) Fixed Deposit Accounts (Including 
interest accrued but not due) **

TOTAL (B) 107244 100887 137475

TOTAL (A+B) 121234 104080 139493

 **Pledged with the banks as margin money or as collateral towards credit limits sanctioned by them to the Company

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 
 AS AT 

31.03.2016 

 AS AT 

01.04.2015 

Note : 10

Trade Receivables (Current)

Unsecured Considered Doubtful 3382 9086 8541

Unsecured Considered Good 149227 169976 172312

152609 179062 180853

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 3382 3382 3382

TOTAL 149227 175680 177471

Note : 11

Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash & Bank Balances:

(a) Cash in hand and in transit 3 36 87

(b) Cheques in Hand 100 0 2400

(c) Balances with Scheduled Banks

     In Current Accounts & E E F C Accounts 3945 4871 791

TOTAL 4048 4907 3278

Particulars
Notes*

Other 

Denomination 

Total

Closing Cash-in-Hand as on 08.11.2016 34 0 34

(+) Permitted Receipts 0 5 5

(-) Permitted Payments 0 4 4

(-) Amount Deposited in Banks 34 0 34

Closing Cash-in-Hand as on 30.12.2016 0 1 1



(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 
 AS AT  AS AT 

Note : 12

Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalent

23 33 20

139 129 515

TOTAL 162 535

Note : 13

Loans (Current) 

Unsecured Considered Good

-Loans & Advances to related parties

4516 13793 14743

TOTAL 4516 13793 14743

Note : 14

Other Financial Assets (Current) 

Unsecured Considered Good

Other Loans & Advances

2747 1988 2821

TOTAL 2747 1988 2821

Note : 15

Current Tax Assets (Net)

8561 8055 9119

7782 7247 7820

TOTAL 779 808 1299

Note : 16

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED :

` 
3100 3100 2100

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP :

` 
2984 2984 1990

TOTAL 2984 2984 1990

16.1. ` 
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16.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares and 
amount outstanding at the beginning and at the 
end of reporting period

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016 As at 1 April, 2015

Number of 
shares

Amount  

in ` Lacs
Number of 

shares
Amount in 

` Lacs
Number of 

shares
Amount in 

` Lacs

Equity Share of ` 10/- each fully paid up:-

29843865 2984 19895910 1990

Bonus Issue - 0.000 9947955 994 1327

Closing Balance 29843865 2984 2984 19895910 1990

16.3 Details of shares held by shareholders holding 
more than 5% shares

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016 As at 1 April, 2015

Class of shares/Name of shareowners Number of 
shares held

holding % Number of 
shares held

holding % Number of 
shares held

holding %

Equity Share of ` 10/- each fully paid up:-

0 0.00% 0

Kothari

16576596 55.54% 9155748

1828098 6.13% 1828098 1218732

3299998 11.06% 3299998 2199999

1690114 5.66%

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 
 AS AT  AS AT 

Note : 17

Reserves and Surplus:

(a) Preference Shares Redemption Reserve

 As per last Balance Sheet 0 0 3

0 0 3

0 0 0

(b) General Reserve

 As per last Balance Sheet 34598 35078 35908

645 515 493

0 995 1323

35243 34598 35078

 As per last Balance Sheet 39466 35518 34409

6451 5541

45917 41059 37771

645 515 493

0 0

0 182 0

896 0 1293

182 0 259

0 0 208

44194 35518

TOTAL 79437



(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 
 AS AT  AS AT 

Note : 18

Long Term Borrowings

51 0 0

TOTAL 51 0 0

Note : 19

Other Non Current Liabilities

87 44 42

TOTAL 87 44 42

Note : 20

Borrowings

Secured:

8711 4735 11024

0 1 94

2200 0 1004

TOTAL 10911 12122

20 (a) (i) Description of the Security Given: 

   Prime Securities: 

   Collateral Securities:

  

` 2203 lacs   

` 1715 lacs   

` 

   Guarantees:   

which Key 
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20(a)(ii) Default in terms of repayment of principal and interest-NIL

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 
 AS AT  AS AT 

Unsecured

0 50 183

66 0

TOTAL 66 213 183

GRAND TOTAL 10977 4949 12305

Note : 21

Trade Payables

192951 239228

TOTAL 192951 239228

Note : 22

Provisions

896 0 1293

182 0 259

TOTAL 1078 0 1552

Note : 23

Other Current Liabilities

41545 29143

5 7 4

23 33 20

Statutory Liabilities 28 42 34

1166 1030 537

TOTAL 42767 30255



(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31-March 2017

Note : 24

Revenue from Operations

419185 452544

8517 11182

414 403

5100 0

1256 0

332 359

TOTAL 434804

Note : 25

Other Income

32 50

858 284

400

1416

519 198

TOTAL 3225 1371

Note : 26

Purchases of Stock-in-trade

411664

TOTAL 411664

Note : 27

Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in Inventories of Stock-in-trade

Opening Stock :

Trading Items 2306

3932 5143

1387 0

TOTAL 7625

Closing Stock

Trading Items 1462

2443 3932

643 1387

TOTAL 4548

3077
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(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
Year Ended 

31-March 2017

Note : 28

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 142 114

10 8

2 0

84 81

TOTAL 238 203

Note : 29

Other Expenses

55

2432 2118

31 21

176 153

1 1

0

 

Building 68 45

34 37

113 130

1216 1078

143 152

0 3

3 3

1 1

30 20

764

0 0

5874 0

TOTAL 10941 7151

Note : 30

Finance Cost

2400 2701

TOTAL 2400 2701



(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
As at  

31 March 2017
As at  

Note : 31

Contingent Liabilities:-

subsidiary

40422 
39235 

(USD 62.34 
Million)

associate companies 
38300 38300 

32500 42500 

Particulars
Year Ended 

31-March 2017

Note : 32

VALUE OF IMPORTS (C.I.F.BASIS) :

402576 447073 

Note : 33

EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :

18 8 

402576 447073 

34 727 

Note : 34

EARNING IN FOREIGN CURRENCY :

315753 

Note : 35

PAYMENT TO AUDITORS :

3 3 

1 1 

Note : 36

Segment Information (Information about Business Segments) : 
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(Amount in ` Lacs)

Year Ended 
31-March 2017

36.2 Segment Information are as under-

(A) Segment Revenue (Net Sales/ Income) 

428953

9076 1987

438029

5602 9510

6348 1574

11950 11084

2400 2701

9550 8383

(C) Segment Assets
As at  

31.03.2017
As at  

285396 320398

44936

330332 351524

(D) Segment Liabilities 

247017

893

247910

Note:37

(i) Names of Related Parties and Description of Relationship :
(A) Key Managerial Personnel & their Relatives :

(B) Associate Companies:
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(D) Subsidiary Companies :

(ii) Summary of Transactions: `

Particulars 

Key Managerial 
 Personnel & Relatives

Associate Companies /
Others in which KMP have 

Subsidiary
Companies

For the year ended / As on For the year ended / As on For the year ended / As on

31.03.2017 31.03.2017 31.03.2017

 835  518  -  - 

 16  166  - 

 9  110  -  - 

 -  3  12  1  1 

 -  393  350  858  284 

 -  106  159  223  204 

 -  -  5,045  -  10,400 

 -  -  -  132 

 -  200  - 

 -  1,399  -  242  - 

outstanding as on date

 -  38,300  38,300  72,922  81,735 

 5  57  -  - 

 -  5,336  4,988  4,779  13,988 

2016-17 2015-16

Note : 38

Earning Per Share 

6451 5541 

29843865 

`) 10.00

`) 21.62 

Note : 39

(A) Forward Contracts (hedged) outstanding as at Balance Sheet date are as under -

31.03.2017

Particulars of Derivatives Derivative 
Contracts

Amount 
in Foreign 
Currency

Equivalent 
Indian 

Rupees

Amount 

Indian

Purpose

Sell 522 33817 1578 

and other 96 6621 0 0 

Buy 995 64538 1184 78511 

and other 

Payables
106 7315 0 0 
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(B) Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposures as at Balance Sheet date are as under-

31.03.2017

Particulars Currency Amount 
in Foreign 
Currency

Equivalent 
Indian 

Rupees

Amount 

Indian 

1247 80883 930 

405 28063 0 0 

Import and other Payables 1385 89795 2782 184544 

1001 69344 0 0 

Note : 40

Operating Lease

Particulars As on 31.03.2017

198 384 

17 70 

0 0 

Note : 41

Note : 42

` 

Note : 43

Note : 44

A

rd May, 2017 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017

`

PARTICULARS Year Ended  
31st March, 2017

 

(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :   

9550 8383

  

159

2400 2701

-3529 489

-1416

-288

-6

0 3

-519

-1258

-32 -4489

5061 10045

32931   

2557

-37425 -1937 18053

Cash Generated from Operations 3124

-2578

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 546

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :   

-65

3 48

-23114

 - 

6856 39742

335

200

9210 3304

-349 3425

558

1258 847

-10 385

32 -5086 50 27729

-5086  27729
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`

PARTICULARS Year Ended  
31st March, 2017

 

(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

6176

-97 30

0

0

-2398 3681

3681

NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) -859

4907 3278

 4048  4907

Note: 

A

rd May, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
To,

The Members,

Kothari Products Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibility

Opinion

Other Matters

` st ` 

` 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

rd



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Act

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting



77

3 3 R D  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 1 6  —  2 0 1 7

Opinion

Other Matters

rd
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2017
(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars NOTE As at 31.03.2017

I. ASSETS

(1) Non-current Assets

1784

Investment Property 4 6028

Goodwill 787 798 798

Investments 13036

Loans 7937

7 107

8 0

(2) Current Assets

Inventories 9 17424

Financial assets

Investments 158113

221044

5970

162

8271

1340

TOTAL ASSETS 442003

II. EQUITY & LIABILITIES

(1) Equity

2984

(2) Other Equity

92799

18

(3) Non-current liabilities 

Financial Liabilities

8800

87

(4) Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities

19494

Trade Payables 259093

Provisions 1700

Other Current Liabilities 57028

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITY 442003

rd
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rd

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2017
(Amount in ` Lacs)

NOTE
Year Ended  

31st March 2017

I. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS :

632810

Other Income 2435

Total Revenue 635245

II. EXPENSES :

83

601611

Changes in inventories 3617

606

267

12147

Finance Costs 4581

Total Expenses 622912

III. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS, SHARE OF 
NET PROFITS OF INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 
EQUITY METHOD AND TAX

12333

-789

IV. 11544

0

V. 11544

Current tax 3504

511

-43 94

VI. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR : 7572

VII. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

0

Income Tax relating to these Items 0

0

Income Tax relating to these Items 0

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (Net of Tax) 0

Less: Minorities Interest 0

VIII. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 7572

IX. EARNINGS PER SHARE

` 25.37

` 25.37



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note:1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: 

1.2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

A. BASIS:   

B. SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTING :  

C. USE OF ESTIMATES : 

1.3. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE) 

 

1.4. LEASE ACCOUNTING :    

1.5. INVENTORIES :   

1.6. INVESTMENTS :    
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1.7. TRANSACTIONS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY : 

a) Initial recognition : 

b) Measurement of foreign currency items at the Balance Sheet date :    

c) Forward Exchange Contracts :    

1.8. REVENUE RECOGNITION:   

1.9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS :   

1.10. PROVISIONS FOR TAXATION:   

1.11. PROVISIONS & CONTINGENCIES:   

1.12. EARNING PER SHARE:   

1.13. PROPOSED DIVIDEND:   

1.14. BORROWING COSTS:

1.15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS, SUBSIDIES AND EXPORT INCENTIVES:

(CONSOLIDATED)



Note : 2

(A) The reconcilation of Equity from the previous Indian GAAP to IND-AS as on:- (Amount in ` Lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31-Mar-16

a  Equity under previous Indian GAAP  93,206 

b  1,077 

c  333 

d

 (9)

 27 

e  (1,942)

 608 

g  (3,482)

 Equity under Ind AS  89,818 

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31-Mar-16

a  7,824 

b  276 

c  133 

d

 (3)

 7 

e  (1,324)

 - 

g  (207)

 6,707 

(CONSOLIDATED)
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Note : 4

Investment Property (Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
 AS AT 

31.03.2017 

Gross Amount

Opening

 3,008 

Other Investment Property*  2,971 

 520 

 -  477 

 - 

Closing  6,499 

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening  415 

For the year  56  48 

Closing  471 

Net Carrying Amount  6,028 

Note : 5

QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

Investments (Non Current)

A. Quoted - Non Trade (At Market Value)

I. Equity Shares, Each, Fully Paid-up 

` 12000 65 77

` 0 0

` 0 0

23944 95

` 0 0

` 6000 70

` 1000 34

` 0 0 4 9

` 10000 1

` 29894 283

` 38005 222

` 

1000 52

` 94500 52

` 94500 56

0 0

0 0 4

14000 50

(CONSOLIDATED)
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QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

0 0

` 2000 32

` 0 0

110000 324

` 1210 9

3000 11 8

` 0 0

20000 27

` 0 0 4 4

40000 74

` 20000 40

30000 78

` 25500 336

` 0 0

600000 121

150 0

` 50000 31

` 215000 64

` 0 0

` 75000 84

` 5000 24

12500 18

` 492056 1367

0 0

` 50000 612

` 0 0 4 4

Aggregate Market Value TOTAL (A) 4232

B. Unquoted

I. Non-trade (At Cost)

Capital Contribution in India Growth Fund 223

II. Trade (At Amortized Cost)

(a) Others

Private Limited

30000 415

10000 1318

NOTE : 5 CONTINUED

(CONSOLIDATED)



QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

III. Trade (At Cost)

(a) Investments in Equity Shares of other 
Companies, each Fully paid up

` 90000 9

1000000 521

(b) Investment in Preference Shares of 
other companies, each fully paid-up 
of ` 10/- each

1621271 2770

1557692 1480

849233 591

815929 1477

(c) Others

with Commercial Tax) 

0

TOTAL (B) 8804

C. Unquoted

I. Trade (Accounted for using equity 
method)

(a) Trade Investments in Equity Shares 
of Associate Companies, each Fully 
paid up

` 25000 1624

` 10000 1

` 10000 1

` 10000 1

` 250000 478 478

` 12500 1

` 

10000 1

2107

2729

-622

associate Companies

-622

TOTAL (C)
0

TOTAL (A+B+C) 13036

NOTE : 5 CONTINUED

(CONSOLIDATED)
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(Amount in ` Lacs)

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

 AS AT 

31.03.2016 

 AS AT 

01.04.2015 

Note : 6

Loans (Non Current) 

Unsecured, Considered Good

(a) Security Deposits 601 554 564

(b) Loans & Advances to related parties 

  (i)  Loans to Associate Companies/Enterprises over which KMP are 
5336 4983 6242

(c) Other Loans & Advances:

Service Tax Input Credit Receivable 15 13 13

Advance for Properties 67 372 372

Advance paid for APHP 55 55 55

Loans to Others 1863 2420 2043

(A) 7937 8397 9289

Unsecured, Considered Doubtful

Loans to Others 100 100 100

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 100 100 100

(B) 0 0 0

TOTAL (A+B) 7937 8397 9289

(Amount in ` Lacs)

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

 AS AT 

31.03.2016 

 AS AT 

01.04.2015 

Note : 7

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred Tax Assets

Arising Due to Time Difference between Books of Accounts and Income-tax 

Act, 1961
107 618 757

TOTAL 107 618 757

Component of Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Property, Plant and Equipment -10 10 -59

Financial Assets -1067 -576 -368

Provisions 1184 1184 1184

TOTAL 107 618 757

Note : 8

Other Non Current Assets

Preliminary & Preoperative Expenses Not Written Off 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0

(CONSOLIDATED)
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(Amount in ` Lacs)

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

Note : 9

Inventories - 

Trading Items 1462

5

1

Finished Goods 12

15301

643

TOTAL 17424

Note : 10

QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

Investments (Current)

A. Mutual Funds-At Market Value

Units, each, fully paid up 

` 

21952856.455 2815

` 

0.000 0

` 

999990.000 108

` 

1200000.000 125

` 

10084259.633 2558

` 

79.086 1

` 

10494468.329 1883

` 

4131238.761 506

` 

30231.809 678

` 

1417.027 56

` 

6359588.445 837

` 

4474.333 1
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QUANTITY (NOS.) (Amount in ` Lacs)

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

AS AT 
31.03.2017

AS AT 
31.03.2016

AS AT 
01.04.2015

SBI Magnum Income Fund-Regular Plan-

Growth of ` 10/-*

10623145.935 5617959.124 5617959.124 4289 2012 1901

SBI Corporate Bond Fund- Regular Plan-

Growth of ` 10/-*

3869.475 0.000 0.000 1 0 0

UTI-Liquid Cash Plan-Institutional-Growth 

of ` 1000/-

15740.065 0.000 0.000 418 0 0

Aggregate Market Value TOTAL (A) 14276 3193 2018

(B) Fixed Deposit Accounts (Including 
interest accrued but not due) **

TOTAL (B) 143837 166437 193836

TOTAL (A+B) 158113 169630 195854

* Includes mutual funds pledged with the banks as margin money or as callateral towards credit limits santioned by them to 

the company

 **Pledged with the banks as margin money or as collateral towards credit limits sanctioned by them to the Company

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

 AS AT 

31.03.2016 

 AS AT 

01.04.2015 

Note : 11

Trade Receivables (Current)
Unsecured Considered Doubtful 3382 9086 8541
Unsecured Considered Good 221044 227316 242919

224426 236402 251460
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts 3382 3382 3382

TOTAL 221044 233020 248078

Note : 12

Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash & Bank Balances:

(a) Cash in hand and in transit 9 42 94

(b) Cheques in Hand 100 0 2400

(c) Balances with Scheduled Banks

  In Current Accounts & E E F C Accounts 5861 10162 1239

TOTAL 5970 10204 3733

Particulars
Notes*

Other 

Denomination 

Total

Closing Cash-in-Hand as on 08.11.2016 34 6 40

(+) Permitted Receipts 0 6 6

(-) Permitted Payments 0 5 5

(-) Amount Deposited in Banks 34 0 34

Closing Cash-in-Hand as on 30.12.2016 0 7 7

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

 AS AT 

31.03.2016 

 AS AT 

01.04.2015 

Note : 13

Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalent

Balances with Scheduled Banks

(i) In Unclaimed Dividend accounts 23 33 20

(ii) In Fixed Deposit Accounts (Including interest accrued but not due) 139 129 550

TOTAL 162 162 570

(CONSOLIDATED)



(Amount in ` Lacs)

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

Note : 14

Other Financial Assets (Current) 

Unsecured Considered Good

Other Loans & Advances

8271

TOTAL 8271

Note : 15

Current Tax Assets (Net)

11483

10143

TOTAL 1340

Note : 16

SHARE CAPITAL

AUTHORISED :

` 

3100

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP :

` 
2984

TOTAL 2984

16.1. ` 

16.2 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016 As at 1 April, 2015

Number of 
shares

Amount in 
` Lacs

Number of 
shares

Amount 
in ` Lacs

Number of 
shares

Amount 
in ` Lacs

Equity Share of ` 10/- each fully paid up:-

29843865 2984 

0 0 994

Closing Balance 29843865 2984 
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16.3 Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016 As at 1 April, 2015

Class of shares/Name of shareowners Number of 
shares held

holding % Number of 
shares held

holding % Number of 
shares held

holding %

Equity Share of ` 10/- each fully paid up:-

0 0.00%

Kothari

16576596 55.54%

1828098 6.13%

3299998 11.06%

e) Magnus Properties Pvt Ltd 1690114 5.66%

(Amount in ` Lacs)

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

Note : 17

Reserves and Surplus:

(a) Preference Shares Redemption Reserve 0

0

Closing balance 0

(b) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 2026

2026

(c) General Reserve

34598

645

0

Closing balance 35243

49958

7572

57530

277

57253

645

0

0

896

182

0

Closing balance 55530

TOTAL 92799

(CONSOLIDATED)



(Amount in ` Lacs)

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

Note : 18

Long Term Borrowings

Unsecured

Car Loan 51

11

189

 
8549 7989

TOTAL 8800

Note : 19

Other Non Current Liabilities

87

TOTAL 87

Note : 20

Borrowings

20(a) Secured:

14115

0 94

2200

TOTAL 16315

20 (a) (i) Description of the Security Given:

  (A) Holding Company:

   Prime Securities: 

   Collateral Securities:

  

` 

` 

` 

(CONSOLIDATED)
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   Guarantees:

   (B) Subsidiary Companies: 

   (1) KPL Exports Pvt Limited 

   Prime Securities:  

  Collateral Securities: 

` 

  Guarantees: 

   (2) Kothari Products Singapore Pte Limited 

   Prime Securities:  

   Collateral Securities: 

   Guarantees: 

20 (a) (ii) Default in terms of repayment of principal and interest- NIL

(Amount in ` Lacs)

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

20(b) Unsecured

3113

Car Loan 66

TOTAL 3179

GRAND TOTAL 19494

Note : 21

Trade Payables

259093

TOTAL 259093

(CONSOLIDATED)
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(Amount in ` Lacs)

 AS AT 
31.03.2017 

 AS AT 

31.03.2016 

 AS AT 

01.04.2015 

Provisions

Proposed Dividend 896 0 1293

Tax on Proposed Dividend 182 0 259

Provision for losses in Associate Companies 622 0 598

TOTAL 1700 0 2150

Note : 23

Other Current Liabilities

Advance Against Orders 55263 29149 95990

Due to Directors 5 7 4

Unclaimed / Unpaid Dividend 23 33 20

Statutory Liabilities 106 84 179

Interest Accrued & Due 225 223 202

Outstanding Liabilities 1406 1220 1395

TOTAL 57028 30716 97790

Year Ended 
31-March 2017

Year Ended 

31-March 2016

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Note : 24

Revenue from Operations

(a) Sales of Traded Goods 614147 669894

(b) Sales 14 32

(c) Other Operating Revenues

  (i) Interest Earned on Bank Deposits held for Business Purposes & others 11378 15583

  (ii) Compensation Received 5100 0

  (iii) Miscellaneous Income 1589 379

  (iv) Rental Income 582 710

TOTAL 632810 686598

Note : 25

Other Income

(a) Dividend Income 32 50

(b) Interest on Loans 400 563

(c) Net Gain on Disposal of Investments 525 198

(d) Net Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipments 59 0

(e) Miscellaneous Receipts 0 0

1419 276

TOTAL 2435 1087

Note : 26

(CONSOLIDATED)
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Year Ended 
31-March 2017

Year Ended 

31-March 2016

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Cost of Material Consumed

Opening Stock 13 0

Add: Purchases 75 28

88 28

Less: Closing Stock 5 13

TOTAL 83 15

Note : 27

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Purchases of Traded Goods 601611 660164

TOTAL 601611 660164

Note : 28

Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in inventories of Finished Goods,  
Work in Progress & Stock-in-trade

Opening Stock:

Trading Items 2848 2037

Finished goods 9 19

Semi Finished Goods (Work-in-Progress) 1 1

Real Estate (Work-in-Progress) 3932 5143

Real Estate (Constructed Premises) 1387 0

TOTAL 8177 7200

Closing Stock 

Trading Items 1462 2848

Finished goods 11 9

Semi Finished Goods (Work-in-Progress) 1 1

Real Estate (Work-in-Progress) 2443 3932

Real Estate (Constructed Premises) 643 1387

TOTAL 4560 8177

3617 -977

Note : 29

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 489 431

Contribution to Provident and other Funds 22 19

Gratuity 2 0

Staff welfare and Other Expenses 93 82

TOTAL 606 532

Note : 30

(CONSOLIDATED)
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Year Ended 
31-March 2017

Year Ended 

31-March 2016

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Other Expenses

Electricity Expenses 74 72

Manufacturing Expenses 3 15

Bank Charges 3169 2813

General Insurance 55 41

Rent 195 164

Rates & Taxes 22 21

Bad Debts 5874 0

Net Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipments 0 3

Repairs :

 Building 90 45

 Others 38 40

Travelling & Conveyance 121 141

Miscellaneous Expenses 1500 6976

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses 187 193

Payment to Auditors :

Statutory Audit Fee 22 19

Tax Audit Fee 1 1

Directors' Remuneration 32 22

Directors' Commission 764 468

Directors' Sitting Fee 0 0

TOTAL 12147 11034

Note : 31

Finance Cost

Interest Cost 4581 4734

TOTAL 4581 4734

(CONSOLIDATED)
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As at  
31 March 2017

As at  

31 March 2016

(Amount in ` Lacs)

Note : 32

Contingent Liabilities:-

32.1 Corporate Guarantees issued by the Company to certain banks on behalf of one of its 

subsidiary 
40422 39235 

(USD 62.34 
Million)

(USD 59.15 

Million)

32.2 Corporate Guarantees issued by the Company to Nationalised banks on behalf of 

associate companies 
38300 38300 

32.3 Corporate Guarantees issued by the Subsidiaries Companies to Nationalised banks  166000 166000 

32.4 Corporate Guarantees issued by the Company to Nationalised banks on behalf of one 

of its wholly owned subsidiary 
32500 42500 

Note : 33

Segment Information (Information about Business Segments) : 

33.1 The Company operates in two business segments-

(a) Trading Items

(b) Real estate etc

Year Ended 
31-March 2017

Year Ended 

31-March 2016

(Amount in ` Lacs)

33.2 Segment Information are as under-

(A) Segment Revenue (Net Sales/ Income) 

(a) Trading Items 625990 685392

(b) Real Estate etc. 9255 2293

635245 687685

(a) Trading Items 10481 14786

(b) Real Estate etc. 5644 546

16125 15332

(c) Interest Expenses 4581 4734

11544 10598

(C) Segment Assets
As at  

31.03.2017
As at  

31.03.2016

(a) Trading Items 393960 449462

(b) Real Estate etc. 48043 27430

442003 476892

(D) Segment Liabilities 

(a) Trading Items 339456 384693

(b) Real Estate etc. 6764 2381

346220 387074
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Note:34

Related Party Disclosures in accordance with Ind AS 24.

(i) Names of Related Parties and Description of Relationship :

(A) Key Managerial Personnel & their Relatives :

(B) Associate Companies:

(ii) Summary of Transactions:

` Lacs)

Particulars 

Key Managerial 
 Personnel & Relatives

Associate Companies /
Others in which KMP have 

For the year ended / As on For the year ended / As on

31.03.2017 31.03.2017

 835  - 

 16  166 

 9  - 

 -  3 

Interest Income on Loan Given  -  393 

 -  106 

 -  - 

 -  200 

 -  - 

Corporate Guarantees issued and outstanding as on date  -  38,300 

 5  - 

 -  5,336  4,988 

(CONSOLIDATED)
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Note : 35

Name of Associates
Proportion of 

Ownership

2016-17

Note : 36

Earning Per Share 

7572 

29843865 

`) 10.00

`) 25.37 

Note : 37

(A) Forward Contracts (hedged) outstanding as at Balance Sheet date are as under -

31.03.2017

Particulars of Derivatives Derivative 
Contracts

Amount 
in Foreign 
Currency

Equivalent 
Indian 

Rupees
in Foreign 

Currency

Indian  

Purpose

628 40747 
and other 

96 6621 

1140 73889 
and other 

Payables
106 7315 

(B) Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposures as at Balance Sheet date are as under-

31.03.2017

Particulars Currency Amount 
in Foreign 
Currency

Equivalent 
Indian 

Rupees
in Foreign 

Currency

Indian 

1607 104207 

586 40590 

Import and other Payables 1709 110831 

1368 94738 

(CONSOLIDATED)



Note : 38

Operating Lease

` Lacs)

Particulars As on 31.03.2017

198 

17 

0 

Note : 39

Note : 40

Note : 41

` 

Note : 42

Note : 43

rd

(CONSOLIDATED)
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rd

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2017
(Amount in ` Lacs)

PARTICULARS 2016-2017
(A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :   

11544
  

267   
4581
-252

-4275
-1419

-91
-6

789

-59
-525
-400   
-32 -1422

10122

34324   
4086

-46753 -8343
Cash Generated from Operations 1779

-3722
-1943

(B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :   
-360   
1084  48  

-24571   
36520

200
-353   
558   
400
-10   
32 13500

 13500  
(C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :   

-9397
623 984

-2439
0   
0

-4578 -15791
-15791

NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C) -4234
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance 10204
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance  5970  

(CONSOLIDATED)
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Additional Information, as required under Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as 
Subsidiaries and Associates

NAME OF THE ENTERPRISES NET ASSETS i.e. TOTAL ASSETS 
MINUS TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHARE IN PROFIT OR LOSS

AS % OF 
CONSOLIDATED 

NET ASSETS

AMOUNT 
(` IN LACS)

AS % OF 
CONSOLIDATED 
PROFIT OR LOSS

AMOUNT 
(` IN LACS)

PARENT

KOTHARI PRODUCTS LIMITED 86.05 82421 85.20 6451

SUBSIDIARIES

INDIAN

MK WEB-TECH PVT LTD 1.65 1580 0.73 55

KPL EXPORTS PVT LTD 19.30 18490 15.86 1201

SAVITRIMATA REALTORS PVT LTD -0.01 -11 -0.01 -1

BLACKPLINTH REALTORS PVT LTD 0.00 0 -0.01 -1

FOREIGN

KOTHARI PRODUCTS SINGAPORE 

PTE LTD

12.39 11871 11.79 893

NON CONTROLLING INTEREST 0.02 18 0.00 0

ASSOCIATES (INVESTMENTS AS 
PER THE EQUITY METHOD)

INDIAN

HARAPARVATI REALTORS PRIVATE 

LIMITED

1.78 1706 4.61 349

REAL GRIHA NIRMAN PRIVATE 

LIMITED

0.00 1 0.00 0

SHUBHADRA REALTORS PRIVATE 

LIMITED

0.00 -1 -0.04 -3

SANKHYA REALTORS PRIVATE 

LIMITED

0.00 -1 0.00 0

SPPL HOTELS PRIVATE LIMITED -2.19 -2093 -14.06 -1065

NEELANCHAL CON-TECH PRIVATE 

LIMITED

-0.14 -132 -0.71 -54

SATTVA REALTORS PRIVATE LIMITED -0.11 -102 -0.21 -16

As per our report of even date attached hereto.

For MEHROTRA & MEHROTRA For and on behalf of the Board

Firm Regn NO. 000226C

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

(VIVEK KUMAR) (DEEPAK KOTHARI)  (MITESH KOTHARI)

Partner   Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director

Membership No. 408227

Place : Kanpur (RAJ KUMAR GUPTA)  (ANURAG TANDON)

Date  : 23rd May, 2017 
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(CIN: L16008UP1983PLC006254)
Regd. Off.: “Pan Parag House”, 24/19, The Mall, Kanpur-208 001 (India).

Ph.: 0512-2312171-74, Fax.: 0512-2312058

Visit us on Internet at: http://www.kothariproducts.in

Email: info@kothariproducts.in, kothari@kothariproducts.in



Regd. Office : “PAN PARAG HOUSE”, 24/19, THE MALL, KANPUR - 208 001
CIN: L16008UP1983PLC006254

ATTENDANCE SLIP
I, hereby record my presence at the Thirty Third Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Friday, the 
22nd day of September, 2017 at 11:30 A.M. at Hotel Vijay Intercontinental, 10/510, Khalasi Line, Tilak Nagar, Near 
Rave – 3, Kanpur.

1. Full Name of the Shareowner/Proxy ………............................................…………………………………………………
 (In Block Letters)
2. Ledger Folio No …………..........…………….. D.P. Id.* …………..........…………….. Client Id* …………..........…………
3. No. of Equity Shares held …………………… 4. Signature of the Shareowner/Proxy
     attending …………...................………………. 

To be used only when First named Shareowner is not attending.
Please give full name of the Joint Holders.

1. Mr./Mrs./Miss …………...……………………...................……………… Signature ……………………..........................
2. Mr./Mrs./Miss …………...……………………...................……………… Signature ……………………..........................
 (in Block Letters)
NOTES:
i. Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall.
ii. Shareowners who come to attend the meeting are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report with them.
iii. No gift will be distributed in the aforesaid meeting as per SEBI guidelines.
 * Applicable for members holding shares in electronic form.

TEAR HERE

Regd. Office : “PAN PARAG HOUSE”, 24/19, THE MALL, KANPUR - 208 001
CIN: L16008UP1983PLC006254

FORM No. MGT-11

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 19(3) of the Companies  

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
Name of the Member(s) :
Registered Address :
E-mail Id :
Folio No./Client Id : 
DP ID :

I/We, being the member(s) of above named company, holding ………......................... shares, hereby appoint :
1. Name :

Address : 
E-mail Id :

or failing him
2. Name :

Address : 
E-mail Id :

or failing him
3. Name :

Address : 
E-mail Id :

&
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and whose signature(s) are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at 
the 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, 22nd day of September, 2017 at 11:30 A.M. at Hotel 

Vijay Intercontinental, 10/510, Khalasi Line, Tilak Nagar, Near Rave – 3, Kanpur and at any adjournment thereof in respect 
of such resolutions as are indicated below :
** I wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below :

Resolution No. Resolutions For Against

Ordinary Business

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including Audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements) of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017 and the Reports of the 
Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon.

2. To declare Dividend for the aforesaid financial year.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Sri Mitesh Kothari (DIN : 00089076), who retires by rotation and being 

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
4. To appoint M/s. Rajiv Mehrotra & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Auditors of the Company and 

to authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.

  ____________________

Signed this …........…..day of ……........…. 2017  Signature of Shareholder

_______________________ _______________________ _______________________

Signature of 1st Proxy holder Signature of 2nd Proxy holder Signature of 3rd Proxy holder
Note : 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered office of the Company, not less than 
48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

2.** This is only optional. Please put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ 
column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

3. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes.
4. In the case of jointholders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the jointholders should be stated. 
5. For the resolution and notes please refer to the Notice of the 33rd Annual General Meeting.

Affix 
Revenue 

Stamp
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